
Adult Commissioning Committee  
 
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain 
the safety of the public, staff and councillors. 
 
The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and 
input into the decision-making process. 
 
Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda. 
 
Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place. 
 
Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 13 January 2021 
 
TIME:  2.00 pm 
 
VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  
 

 

3   Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 11th November 2020  
 

(Pages 1 - 8) 

 ITEMS FOR DECISION  
 

 

4   Finance Report, including requests for approval of contract 
extensions  
 

(Pages 9 - 20) 

5   Charging Assessment Team Capacity within the Welfare Rights 
and Debt Advice Service (WRADAS)  
 

(Pages 21 - 36) 

 ITEMS FOR ASSURANCE  
 

 

6   Adults Assurance Framework Report  
 

(Pages 37 - 64) 

 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION  
 

 

7   Urgent and Emergency Care Update  
 

(Pages 65 - 72) 

8   Adult Commissioning Report  
 

(Pages 73 - 84) 

Public Document Pack

https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus


 

9   Any Other Business  
 

 

10   Dates of Future Meetings  
 
Wednesday 10 February 2021 at 14:00 
Wednesday 10 March 2021 at 14:00 
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Carol Eddleston 
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF ADULTS’ COMMISSONING COMMITTEE HELD VIA MS 

TEAMS 

Wednesday 11 November 2020 14:00 – 16:10 

Present 

Dr Muna Abdel Aziz (MAA)  Director of Public Health – CCG/SCC  

Cllr Jim Cammell (JC)   Executive Support Member for Social Care &  

     Mental Health - SCC 

Cllr Bill Hinds (BH)  Lead Member for Finance & Support Services - SCC 

Cllr Tracy Kelly (TK) Statutory Deputy City Mayor and Lead Member for 

Housing & Neighbourhoods - CCG 

Dr David McKelvey (DMcK)  Neighbourhood Lead - CCG 

Mrs Charlotte Ramsden CR)  Strategic Director People - SCC 

Dr Tom Regan (TR)   Clinical Director for Commissioning - CCG  

Cllr Gina Reynolds (GR) Lead Member for Adult Services, Health & Wellbeing - 

SCC - Chair 

Dr Jeremy Tankel (JT)   Medical Director - CCG – Co-chair 

Mrs Francine Thorpe (FT)   Director of Quality and Innovation - CCG  

Mr Paul Walsh (PW) Assistant Director, Integrated Commissioning –    

CCG/SCC 

Mr David Warhurst (DH)   Chief Finance Officer - CCG 

 

In Attendance 

Mr Mark Albiston (MA) Divisional Director - Adult Social Care (Assessments) – 

Salford Care Organisation 

Mr Harry Golby (HG)   Assistant Director of Commissioning - CCG 

Mrs Joanne Hardman (JH)  Chief Finance Officer - SCC 

Mr Judd Skelton (JS) Assistant Director, Integrated Commissioning – 

CCG/SCC 

Ms Claire Vaughan (CV)  Head of Medicines Optimisation – CCG 

Dr Anne Whittington (AW)  Pubic Health Speciality Registrar - SCC 

 

Apologies 

Mr Steve Dixon (SD)   Chief Accountable Officer - CCG 

Mr David Flinn (DF)   Neighbourhood Lead – CCG 

Mrs Karen Proctor (KP)  Director of Commissioning - CCG 

 

1. Apologies for Absence 

The above apologies were noted. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest in any of the items on the agenda. 

 

3. Draft Notes of the Meeting held on 14th October 2020 

The notes of the meeting held on 14th October 2020 were approved as a correct record. 

 

4. Items for Assurance 

4a) Public Health Annual Report 2019-20 and Locality Plan 2020-25 

MAA delivered a comprehensive presentation on Salford Locality Plan 2020-25, with 

particular reference to Years 1 and 2: Living with COVID-19 and Building Back Better.  

The revised plan built on the themes of Start Well, Live Well and Age Well from the 2016 

plan, putting Salford people at the centre of its vision and introducing Strong and Resilient 

Communities (carers, places and communities & neighbourhoods). 

The next two years would see a focus on protecting health and managing outbreaks, living 

with COVID-19 with prevention and co-production, and building back a better and fairer 

Salford with place making; economy, growth & regeneration, and outbreak management. 

 

Members thanked the MAA and her team for their stirling work on public health and 

discussed a number of the positive themes arising from the presentation and the work to 

date of partners coming together to manage COVID-19: 

 Co-production  

 Attempts to tackle longstanding inequalities now exacerbated by COVID-19 

 Mental health referenced throughout the different themes in the Locality Plan 

 Continued working across GM on transformation and climate action 

 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee thanked MAA for the comprehensive 

presentation and extended their thanks to the Public Health team for all their work on 

the Annual Report, the Locality Plan 2020-25 and their work with partners across the 

city in tackling COVID-19.  

 

4b) Finance Report 

DW presented an in-year update in relation to the financial performance of the adults’ 

element of the Integrated Fund (IF) at September 2020. 

The adults’ element was currently showing an underspend of £0.4m which was a much 

improved position from the start of the year when a minimum overspend of £1m to 

September was projected, if the system did not deliver its savings targets.  

The main areas of over and under performance were mainly in line with those reported to the 

committee in October, with an increased underspend on mental health services following a 

smaller than expected increase in the number of placements to September 2020.  

Page 2



50% of the social care sector had implemented pay rises to their care workers. If any of the 

remaining providers failed to do so imminently this would be escalated to locality leaders. 

GR pointed out that in fact only 300 care workers were moving onto the Real Living Wage 

out of a total of approximately 3500 across the city. 

As stated at previous meetings Salford was in a better financial position than some other 

localities because of the integrated way in which it worked. 

 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the in-year position of the adults’ 

service within the Integrated Fund for 2020/21 and noted the risks and next steps. 

 

4c) UEC By Appointment 

FT presented an update on arrangements being made to develop a Salford Urgent 

Emergency Care by Appointment Scheme which included two models to support the 

programme: Implementing Pre-ED Registration Streaming and Call before you attend. 

The pre-ED Registration Steaming service had yielded on average 40+ patients a day being 

streamed away from the ED and to more appropriate services. This represented 20 to 30% 

of all adult patients selfpresenting at the ED. This service went live following two successful 

tests of change (ToC) projects carried out in August 2020. These involved having two 

Advance Nurse Practitioners (one from Acute and one from Primary Care) at the front door 

assessing all ambulatory self-presenters and directing them into the ED or booking them in 

to an alternative, more appropriate clinical service. This service was supported by the 

development of a Local Clinical Assessment Service (LCAS) based in Salford. The ToCs 

resulted in 20+% of selfpresenters being directed to more appropriate alternative services 

and follow up calls saw high levels of service user satisfaction. 

 

Salford was somewhat further ahead than other areas of GM so, for the time being, 

information about the scheme was being delivered by staff supporting the service so as to 

minimise the risk of confusion. NHS England (NHSE) was intending to provide a national 

launch programme from 1st December and Salford CCG & SRFT communications teams 

were in discussions with both NHSE and Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 

Partnership (GMHSCP) to ensure that activity in Salford reflected the national and regional 

plans. 

 

Reference in the report’s recommendations to a business case being presented to the 

Adults’ Commissioning Committee was incorrect. The Primary Care Commissioning 

Committee would make the decision on whether to approve recurrent investment and the 

Adults’ Commissioning Committee would be kept up to date on the financial implications. 

GP members of the committee in particular commended the excellent progress being made 

already and were joined by all members in thanking all those involved in developing and 

implementing the scheme. 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee supported the continued development of the 

UEC by Appointment Programme and noted that a business case was being prepared 

for presentation to a future meeting of the Primary Care Commissioning Committee. 

 

Page 3



4d) Adult Social Care Update 

MA and PW presented a comprehensive update on the following key aspects of Adult Social 

Care (ASC) in Salford, reflecting experiences through Covid-19 and the plans in place for the 

winter period: 

- Winter planning for ASC within our integrated system, including the approach taken 

to meet the national requirements for Winter planning: 

o Preventing and controlling the spread of infection in care settings, 

o Collaboration across health and care services, 

o Supporting people who receive social care, the workforce and carers, 

o Supporting the system, 

o Challenges. 

- ASC Performance – a summary of the most recent performance report: 

o A more streamlined and targeted approach to assessing the system,  

o Significant level of operational resilience during the Covid crisis, 

o Strong recovery plans in place for the Direct Payments service pathway 

where performance had decreased due to the impact of Covid, 

o Planning with Healthwatch Salford a deep-dive neighbourhood assessment of 

ASC through the initial phase of the Covid crisis and on into the next phase. 

- Adult Safeguarding – an update on key developments: 

o Significant operational and practical challenges to the delivery of 

safeguarding duties as a result of Covid, 

o A revised approach to quality assurance had been introduced accordingly, 

o A Self-Neglect Advisory Panel was currently being developed for sign off by 

the end of the year. 

- Community Led Support – update on the transformation programme for ASC 

practice: 

o Collaboration between the individual and those providing support – 

encouraged working together so that individuals could co-produce services 

and support rather than be solely consumers 

o Based on strengths-based practice drawing on the individual’s own strengths 

and assets to help them understand their needs, realise what they can 

achieved independently and how best to use their skills and networks. 

- ASC Market Shaping Strategy – summary from the working draft document: 

o A new ASC Market Shaping Strategy was required under Section 5 of the 

Care act and was now nearing completion, 

o Recognised the good work that we had carried out over recent years, the 

aspects that we wished to improve upon and set out the ways in which we 

would deliver the actions and approaches to realise that transformation that 

would secure the best possible outcomes for the people of Salford, 

o A final draft would be presented to the committee at a future meeting.  

- Market Management overview – update on the current status of the market and a 

number of key current work areas: 

o PPE stock,  

o staffing levels,  

o risk of an outbreak, 

o ability to accept placements & packages of care. 

Members welcomed the progress outlined in the report but joined JT in expressing concern 

about the high number of care staff who were currently affected by Covid and sought 

Page 4



assurance that all appropriate steps were being taken to ensure that the individuals they 

were caring for did not become infected. 

 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the comprehensive report and thanked 

MA for attending to present the report with PW. 

 

[ADMINISTRATOR’S NOTE: Since the meeting Paul Walsh has been able to provide the 

following update about infection protection control and homecare: 

 

Additional ‘Teams’ sessions are being planned with homecare providers as a follow-up to 

sessions run earlier in the Covid Crisis. Detailed updated Coronavirus Infection Prevention 

Advice has been circulated to all ASC providers including homecare agencies. 

The Care Org will continue to monitor the homecare sit rep and action any matters, including 

addressing PPE stocks as identified 

All our homecare providers have been issued with the first instalment of Infection Control 

funding – the grant from the DHSC. The conditions of the use of this funding are: 

 ensuring that staff who are isolating in line with government guidance receive their 
normal wages and do not lose income while doing so. At the time of issuing the 
grant circular, this includes: 
 staff with suspected symptoms of COVID-19 waiting for a test 

 where a member of the staff’s household has suspected symptoms of COVID-
19 and are waiting for a test 

 where a member of the staff’s household has tested positive for COVID-19 and 
is therefore self-isolating 

 any staff member for a period of at least 10 days following a positive test 

 if a member of staff is required to quarantine prior to receiving certain NHS 
procedures (generally people do not need to self-isolate prior to a procedure or 
surgery unless their consultant or care team specifically asks them to) 

 steps to limit the number of different people from a home care agency visiting a 
particular individual or steps to enable staff to perform the duties of other team 
members/partner agencies (including, but not limited to, district nurses, 
physiotherapists or social workers) when visiting to avoid multiple visits to a 
particular individual 

 meeting additional costs associated with restricting workforce movement for 
infection control purposes. This includes staff who work on a part-time basis for 
multiple employers or in other care settings particularly care homes. This includes 
agency staff (the principle being that the fewer locations that members of staff work 
in the better) 

 ensuring that staff who need to attend work for the purposes of being tested (or 
potentially in the future, vaccinated) for COVID-19 are paid their usual wages to do 
so 

 steps to limit the use of public transport by members of staff (taking into account 
current government guidance on the safe use of other types of transport by 
members of staff). 

 

Providers are required to update national reporting (which we have access to) and send in 

monthly spend reports to SCC]. 

 

Page 5

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-safer-travel-guidance-for-passengers


5. Items for Information 

 

5a) Integrated Business Plan Update and Financial Implications 

 

DW presented the report which provided the committee with an update in relation to the 

locality priorities that were presented to the commissioning committees earlier in the year, a 

high level overview of the costs and looked to provide adequate information to consider the 

continuation of priorities with the context of the overall financial position. The paper included 

the detail of all priorities and not just those where the decision to approve was governed by 

the committee that the paper was being presented to. This was to provide an overview of the 

level of investment that was required of the integrated fund. 

There were still a significant number of unknowns relating to finances so it was proposed 

that the system priorities identified should be worked up into business cases, recognising 

that the locality agreed these were critical to recovery and restoration. For the Adults 

Committee, after the inclusion of these strategies and also pre-committed investments 

agreed prior to COVID, there would be a £1m savings target, which was in line with the 

fund’s starting point at the beginning of the financial year. 

Members warmly welcomed the report which helped to put funding requests into the wider 

context of the wider system priorities, which was not always visible when individual business 

cases were presented for approval in isolation. 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the report. 

 

5b) Adult Commissioning Report 

HG and JS presented the report which updated the committee on: 

Social prescribing – referral of patients to non-clinical support in the community, in order to 

improve their health and wellbeing; 

Mental health support for students – work underway with various partners to identify and 

promote the support initiatives in place particularly in the context of Covid-19 and mental 

wellbeing; 

Housing and Hospital Discharge – the service continues to have a positive impact on the 

experience of both patients and staff by addressing and resolving housing related issues that 

impact on hospital discharge and transitions of care at SRFT and Meadowbrook by providing 

a single point of contact and specialist knowledge for any housing advice, homelessness 

case work and resettlement support,  

Community Health Services – several projects have progressed recently, including Oviva 

being commissioned to deliver additional remote diabetes support sessions until 31st March 

2021, a review of review community ophthalmology services which a contract with Operose 

health to provide community ophthalmology services and a range of smaller primary eye 

health care contracts with opticians, and a review of the community dietetics service. 

 

The Adults’ Commissioning Committee noted the report. 

 

Page 6



5c) Any Other Business  

There were no items of any other business. 

 

6. Dates of Future Meetings  

Wednesday 13 January 2021 at 14:00  

Wednesday 10 February 2021 at 14:00  

Wednesday 10 March 2021 at 14:00 

 

The meeting closed at 16:10. 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Adults’ Commissioning Committee 

Part 1 

Agenda item number: 4 

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information 

13th January 2021 

Report of: Chief Finance Officer 

Date of paper: 17th December 2020 

Subject: Finance Report 

In case of query please contact: David Warhurst, Interim Chief Finance 
Officer 

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to) 

Priority Selection 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research:   

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult Services): X 

Children’s and Maternity Services:   

Primary Care:   

Enabling Transformation:  X 

Purpose of paper:  

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Adults’ Commissioning Committee with the 
2020/21 financial outturn of the Integrated Fund for Adult services (Section 3) along with 
highlighting the risks to the financial position of the Adults Integrated Fund 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

Further explanatory information required 

Question Answer 

How will this benefit the health 
and wellbeing of Salford 
residents or the Clinical 
Commissioning Group? 

Ensuring public funding is spent 
appropriately.  Achieving Value for Money, 
ensuring that funding is available to protect 
core services. 

What risks may arise as a result 
of this paper? How can they be 
mitigated? 

Financial and performance pressures 
associated with the adults’ integrated fund 
services. Through management of 
committed developments and holding 
providers to account for performance. 

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated? 

N/A 

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them? 

N/A 

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper. 

N/A 

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper. 

 

N/A 

 
Footnote: 

 

Members of Adults Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly. Once papers 
are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 10



 

   

 

 

 

Document development 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Public engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation) 

 X    

Clinical engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation) 

 X    

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value 
and the impacts on the residents of Salford 
socially, economically and environmentally 
(including climate change)? 

 X    

P
age 11



 

   

 

 

 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts? 

(Please detail outcomes, including risks and 
how these will be managed)  

 X    

Legal advice sought 
 

 

X    

Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) for 
engagement or other formal governance 
groups for comments / approval?  

(Please specify in comments) 

X   Elements have been reviewed by the 
Service and Finance Group 

 

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 
and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work 

P
age 12



 

   

 

 

 

Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC) 

Finance Report – 13th January 2020 

1. Executive summary 

This finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with an in-year 
update in relation to the financial performance of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund. 

At November 2020, the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is currently forecasting to be 
overspent by £0.6m. The last report proposed a £1.0m over spent position however with the 
mitigations that were put forward this would be a near breakeven position, therefore this position 
shows a worsening of the position by £0.6m from the last report. 

Section 2 highlights the main areas of over and under performance within the fund.  All budget 
areas have been realigned to match the now known allocation of the CCG for the rest of the 
year. There have been some movements in budgets between lines but remains in line with the 
last report to the committee with the exception of the below changes in position: 

Client Income has been reviewed and a further £0.3m of under achievement has been 
forecast bring the under achievement to £1.0m 

Continuing care has seen an increase in placements costs above the expected increase 
by £0.3m 

There has been an increase in independent mental health (MH) placements resulting in a 
further £0.1m of cost pressure. 

ASC Contingency £0.8m has been released to offset the original £1.0m cost pressure 
report in the last report to the committee. 

Section 3 highlights those contracts that are due to expire by the end of the financial year. 
These have previously been presented to the Service and Finance Group in October 2020 and 
their recommendations are include within the report. 

ACC is asked to note the forecast position for the Adults’ Integrated Fund for 2020/21 and also 
agree to the recommendations for the contracts expiring by the end of the financial year. 

 

2. 2020/21 Monitoring 

2.1  This latest finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with the 
forecast position of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund for the financial year 
(2020/21).  The appendices normally contain further detail, but it should be noted, due to 
the majority of contracts being on block for the full year these appendices have been 

Page 13



 

   

 

 

 

removed for this year as they provide detail on activity which is not currently being 
reported. This finance report is based on information up to the end of November 2020. 
The Service and Finance Group (SFG) have scrutinised the position and agreed to the 
key messages. 

2.2 The forecast position to November 2020 is an over spend of £0.6m, where expenditure is 
forecast to underspend by £0.4m but this is offset by income estimated to underachieve 
by £1.0m due to COVID-19 and the effects on customer and client receipts, as shown in 
Table 1 below. 

Table 1: 2020/21 Financial Summary 

 

 

YTD Budget  YTD Actual
YTD 

Variance

Annual 

Budget
Forecast

Annual 

Variance

ACC Previously 

Reported 

Variance

Movement in 

Variance

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

TOTAL FUNDING £268,677 £267,927 (£750) £407,282 £406,282 (£1,000) (£750) (£250)

Adult Social Care £65,340 £65,418 £78 £98,010 £98,127 £117 - £117

Acute Services £63,773 £63,885 £113 £95,659 £95,828 £169 - £169

Community Services £19,572 £19,682 £110 £29,358 £29,523 £165 - £165

TOTAL - ICO £148,684 £148,985 £301 £223,026 £223,478 £452 - £452

Acute Services £15,572 £15,538 (£34) £23,358 £23,306 (£52) (£46) (£6)

Adult Social Care £2,518 £2,698 £180 £3,777 £3,957 £180 £180 -

Adult Social Care - Capital £2,056 £2,056 - £3,085 £3,085 - - -

Community Assets/ Voluntary Sector £1,335 £1,415 £79 £2,003 £2,122 £119 £22 £97

Community Services £1,651 £1,661 £10 £2,476 £2,491 £15 (£658) £673

Continuing Health Care & Funded Nursing Care £3,955 £3,957 £2 £5,933 £5,935 £2 (£257) £260

Mental Health Services - NHS £23,056 £23,061 £4 £34,584 £34,591 £7 £76 (£70)

Mental Health Services - Private & Voluntary Sector £5,115 £5,103 (£12) £7,673 £7,774 £101 (£500) £601

Public Health Services £5,930 £5,930 - £8,894 £8,894 - £0 (£0)

TOTAL - Non ICO £61,188 £61,417 £229 £91,783 £92,155 £373 (£1,182) £1,554

Acute Services £48,156 £47,837 (£319) £76,501 £76,022 (£479) (£61) (£418)

Ambulance Services £7,016 £7,061 £45 £10,524 £10,591 £67 £36 £32

Community Services £38 £38 (£0) £57 £57 (£0) - (£0)

NHS 111 £555 £559 £5 £832 £835 £3 (£25) £28

Termination of Pregnancies £448 £441 (£8) £673 £661 (£12) (£44) £33

TOTAL - Aligned £56,213 £55,936 (£277) £88,586 £88,166 (£420) (£94) (£326)

TOTAL - Committed Developments £2,591 £2,184 (£408) £3,887 £3,125 (£761) £1,526 (£2,287)

TOTAL EXPENDITIURE £268,677 £268,522 (£155) £407,282 £406,925 (£357) £250 (£607)

Over/(Under) Spend £0 £595 £595 - £643 £643 £1,000 (£357)

£'000's %

£508 79%

£135 21%

£643 100%

2020/21 Monitoring

Description

CCG Element of Over/(Under) Spend

Council Element of Over/(Under) Spend

Grand Total

Page 14



 

   

 

 

 

2.3 Acute/other underspends – The CCG has been mandated by NHSE to maintain set 
budget values that have been calculated nationally until the end of March 2021. The 
budgets have now been realigned to reflect these set values. The independent sector 
providers are exempt from these block arrangements and will return to their normal 
contract arrangements of activity based payments. There are still some independent 
sector providers that remain on a national contract with NHSE for Salford there is only 
Oaklands that remain on this contract.  

2.3.1 Committed Developments - A further £0.8m has been released to offset the overspend 
within the adults position. There are still a number of investments that are currently being 
reviewed to ensure they are still required and what will be spend in the remainder of 
2020/21. There may be further slippage in the investments proposed for the rest of the 
year as some of these relate to staffing models. 

2.3.2 Customer & Client Receipts - £1.0m – A further review has been undertaken and the 
shortfall in income in relation to care homes and this has been increased by £0.25m. As 
national guidance has been amended on this area the loss seen so far is not expected to 
continue for the remainder of 2020/21.  However there is currently a backlog of 
assessments that need to be completed in order to ascertain if charging should be made 
for clients. 

 

3. Contracts Expiring 2021 

3.1  The contracts in the tables below are due to expire 31st March 2021.  A paper was 
presented to the Service and Finance Group in October 2020, the recommendations 
from that meeting are also included. 

Healthy Living Centres (HLC) (Table 2) 

Provider Contract Type Payment Type Recurrent Contract 
Value 

Social Adventures 

Big Life 

Langworthy 
Cornerstone 

NHS Standard 
Contract 

Block 

£504,095 

£147,503 

£342,646 

3.1.1  A paper was presented to this committee in February 2020 providing a detailed overview 
of the services delivered under these contracts. Following a collaborative piece of work 
with the HLC’s a single service specification with a common outcomes framework was 
agreed in March 2017 and implemented in 2017/18. HLC’s commenced reporting of 
activity through the Social Value Portal; an online monitoring system that allows health 

Page 15



 

   

 

 

 

and wellbeing activities and outcomes to be tracked alongside a calculation of social 
value added.  

3.1.2 At the last review of these contracts the decision was made to extend these by 1 year to 
31/03/21 (with a further + 1 year extension option to 31/03/22)  as there was a planned  
review of wider VCSE investment’s across Salford to be undertaken by the council. This 
review has not yet started due to COVID-19 and the impact on capacity to complete the 
work. The committee is therefore recommended to agree to exercise the additional 1 
year extension option of these contracts to 31/03/22 to allow this review to be 
undertaken. Service and Finance Group support the recommendation. 

3.1.3 Recommendation of SFG to ACC - Exercise the 1 year extension option in the 
Social Adventures, Langworthy Cornerstone and Big Life Healthy Living Contracts 
to 31/03/22 to allow the wider VCSE review to be undertaken. 

 

Age UK Salford (Table 3) 

Provider Contract Type Payment Type Recurrent Contract 
Value 

Hospital Aftercare 

Dementia Support 

Social Rehabilitation 

NHS Standard 
Contracts 

Block 

£280,807 

£215,398 

£61,131 

3.2 Age UK Salford is commissioned to deliver three separate services. Each service 
specification has been running for a number of years and last year an option to extend 
was exercised bringing the end date of each commissioned service to 31st March 2021. 
Commissioners are seeking for the contract to be further extended for an additional 12 
months from 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022 allowing preparation of a full tendering 
exercise to identify a provider to deliver provision from 1st April 2022. 

3.2.1 Due to COVID-19 a desk top review has been conducted to ensure that request to 
extend the contract presents a low risk and is the best option available to Salford’s 
population at this time. All three contracts have been performing well and are considered 
a good service. Performance is monitored on a quarterly basis. 

3.2.2 The main factor resulting in the request to extend the contract by 12 months is in relation 
to the COVID-19 pandemic and the knock-on effect this has had on the capacity to 
finalise work in association with a robust service review. The outcome of the review will 
hold essential information which will ultimately impact the future commissioning 
intentions for services supporting Salford’s older population. 

3.2.3 In these times of uncertainty, the changing response to COVID-19 does need to be 
considered. Age UK Salford provides an important service for the older population of 
Salford on behalf of the council and CCG. This will still be required during the COVID-19 

Page 16



 

   

 

 

 

situation. Service and Finance Group (SFG) supported the recommendation to extend 
each contracted service for Age UK. 

Recommendation of SFG to ACC – Extend the current contract with Age UK for the 
3 separately commissioned services of Hospital Aftercare, Social Rehabilitation 
and Dementia Support to 31/03/22 is to allow the service reviews to be completed 
and if required a procurement to be undertaken.  

 

Broomwell Healthwatch (Table 4) 

Provider Contract Type Payment Type Recurrent Contract 
Value 

Broomwell 
Healthwatch Limited 

NHS Standard 
Contract 

PbR and Block £199,825 

3.3 Broomwell Healthwatch deliver remote interpretation of ECGs undertaken in Primary 
Care, this removes the need for patients to attend hospital for some diagnostic tests to 
be undertaken.  

3.3.1 Broomwell Healthwatch also provide support to the Primary Care Diagnostics Hub 
(PCDU), a review of this hub was due to be undertaken but has not been completed due 
to a new of factors including COVID-19, this review will help to inform the commissioning 
arrangements of this service in the future. 

3.3.2 Commissioners have cited a preference to roll this contract for 12 months (1st April 2021 
– 31st March 2022) to allow the review work to be undertaken. This recommendation was 
supported by Service and Finance Group. 

Recommendation of SFG to ACC – Approve the extension of the Broomwell 
Healthcare contract to 31/03/22 to allow for the review of the Primary Care 
Diagnostic Hub to be undertaken and option for the future of this contract to be 
explored.  

 

Age Friendly Salford (Table 5) 

Provider Contract Type Payment Type Recurrent Contract 
Value 

Salford CVS – Tech 
&Tea 

NHS Standard 
Contract 

Block £145,000 

3.4  Age Friendly Salford is a consortium of 3 VCSE partners, namely; Inspiring Communities 
Together, Age UK Salford and Salford CVS. Officially, these organisations are contracted 
to deliver the Community Assets Tech and Tea contract. However, over the past 12 

Page 17



 

   

 

 

 

months, their collaboration has grown, and they have come together operationally to 
create the publicly identifiable brand of ‘Age Friendly Salford’, whilst meeting the 
outcomes of the Community Assets Tech and Tea contract. 

3.4.1 The partners have adapted their delivery during this challenging year, ensuring older 
Salford residents remain connected and supported throughout the pandemic. The history 
of the Tech and Tea programme put many older residents in a good position to keep in 
touch with their friends and family online, as the programme had equipped them with the 
kit and digital skills needed. Currently, there are daily activities via Zoom to keep people 
engaged whilst others are supported by phone, where appropriate. 

In addition to the operational delivery, the strategic work sits within the following 
governance structure: 

 International National Greater 
Manchester 

Salford 

Who  World Health 
Organisation 

Centre for 
Ageing Better 

GM Ageing Hub Age Friendly 
Salford Alliance 

Salford Older 
Person Network 

What  Maintain 
Salford’s WHO 
Age Friendly City 
status 

UK network of 
Age Friendly 
Communities 

Active member – 
sharing learning, 
aligning delivery  

Bringing key 
stakeholders 
together to 
support AFS 
agenda  

Providing older 
people across 
Salford with a 
voice and 
influence on the 
delivery of the 
AFS plan  

3.4.2 The contract was awarded from 1st April 2020 for 1 year to 31/03/21 with a further +1 
year extension option to 31/03/22. ACC is recommended to exercise the +1 year 
extension to 31/03/22. Service and Finance Group supported this recommendation. 

3.4.3 Throughout the next 12 months, a comprehensive review will be undertaken. This will be 
in partnership with stakeholders and citizens, as well as exploring co-commissioning 
options with the integrated commissioning team, who also fund these partners to provide 
services for older people. The review will take the learnings from the contract in their 
current form, consider the impact of the adaptations made as a result of Covid-19, as 
well as reviewing best practice nationally, to formulate a valuable, comprehensive service 
offer that supports older people in Salford to age well. 

3.4.4 Considerations will be given to neighbourhood models, strength-based support and 
healthy ageing, as we explore the services within the scope of the review and how they 
best fit within the wider system. The new service model will be co-designed with Salford 
residents and will meet the ageing well outcomes identified in the locality plan. 

           Recommendation of SFG to ACC – Exercise the 1 year extension option of the 
Community Assets Tech and Tea separate contract to 31/03/22. 

 

Page 18



 

   

 

 

 

5. Recommendations 

5.1 The Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) is asked to: 

 Note the financial position of the adults’ services within the Integrated Fund for 2020/21. 

 Exercise the 1 year extension option in the Social Adventures, Langworthy Cornerstone 
and Big Life Healthy Living Contracts to 31/03/22. 

 Extend the current contract with Age UK for the 3 separately commissioned services of 
Hospital Aftercare, Social Rehabilitation and Dementia Support to 31/03/22. 

 Approve the extension of the Broomwell Healthcare contract to 31/03/22. 

 Exercise the 1 year extension option for Community Assets Tech and Tea contract to 
31/03/22. 

 

David Warhurst 

Interim Chief Financial Officer, Salford CCG 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Adult Commissioning Committee 

Part 1 

Agenda item number: 5 

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information   

13th January 2021 

Report of: The Director of People 

Date of paper: 4th January 2021 

Subject: Business Case for Additional Investment in the Charging 
Assessment Team within the City Council’s Welfare Rights and Debt 
Advice Service (WRADAS). 

In case of query please contact: Catherine Connors 

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to) 

Priority Selection 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research:   

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult 
Services): 

X 

Children’s and Maternity Services:   

Primary Care:   

Enabling Transformation:   

 

Purpose of paper:  

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



 

 

Further explanatory information required 

Question Answer 

How will this benefit the health 
and wellbeing of Salford 
residents or the Clinical 
Commissioning Group? 

 

What risks may arise as a result 
of this paper? How can they be 
mitigated? 

 

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated? 

 

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them? 

 

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper. 

 

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper. 

 

 

 
Footnote: 

 

Members of Adult Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly. Once papers 
are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 22



 

   

 

 

 

Document development 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Public engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Clinical engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social 
Value and the impacts on the residents of 
Salford socially, economically and 
environmentally (including climate 
change)? 

X   Matters relating to Salford City 
Council’s Anti-Poverty Strategy 

 

P
age 23



 

   

 

 

 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts? 

(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed)  

 X    

Legal advice sought 
 

 

X    

Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) 
for engagement or other formal 
governance groups for comments / 
approval?  

(Please specify in comments) 

X   Directorate Management Group 

Lead Member for Adults Services, 
Health and Wellbeing 

SCC/SCCG Directors of Finance 

Business Case approved 
based on financial 
projections. 

 
Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 

P
age 24



 

   

 

 

 

and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work 

P
age 25



 

   

 

 

 

Business Case for Additional Investment in the 
Charging Assessment Team (WRADAS). 

 

1. Executive summary 

The Welfare Rights and Debt Advice Service (WRADAS) in the People’s Directorate 
provides specialist, independent welfare rights and debt advice to maximise the income 
of Salford citizens. 

The Care Act 2014 Charging Assessment function for non-residential care sits within 
Salford City Council’s WRADAS and the Charging Assessment team delivers this 
statutory service with a current annual staffing budget of £282,732.  

The team is responsible for providing financial assessments for service users of non-
residential care services. This is a specialist role which requires a holistic assessment of 
a person’s financial circumstances, establishing and calculating their personal disability 
related expenditure as well as identifying missing social security entitlements in order to 
accurately and fairly determine the charge payable towards the cost of their care.  

The team generates over £2.5 million per annum in income collected from charges which 
is passed through to the Integrated Fund to support delivery of services. 

In 2003, the team comprised of 8 FTE Charging Assessors. Subsequent budget cuts 
reduced this to 4 in 2011. Currently, the Charging Assessment Team core capacity is 3.8 
FTE. 

A review undertaken by WRADAS, Strategic Commissioners and Salford Care 
Organisation has identified a backlog of charging assessments awaiting completion, a 
situation complicated by the Covid Funding arrangements which has created 2 cohorts of 
service users determined by the date care package commenced.  

Currently the estimated average amount of time from a service user being referred for a 
charging assessment to the initial assessment visit/contact taking place is in the region of 
8 weeks. In financial terms, this represent a potential loss of charging income to the 
integrated system of circa £260K per annum.  

An options appraisal considered 4 approaches to address this is detailed in this paper and 
the Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to agree Option(d) to secure additional 
investment of £110k in order to enable recruitment of 3 x FTE Charging Assessors into 
the Charging Assessment Team to both reduce the backlog and sustain a shorter waiting 
time for assessments. The financial projections provided are based on a number of 

Page 26



 

   

 

 

 

assumptions, indicate that due to the extra client income it is anticipated it would be 
collected as a result of the investment in additional staff to undertake charging 
assessments and the fact that client income is passed through to the integrated fund,  the 
net funding ask could be reduced or potentially generate a surplus depending on the 
reduction to waiting times achieved as a result of the additional investment.  

 

 

2. Context  

2.1 Government funding arrangements for care post COVID19 have effectively created 2 
cohorts of people; a proportion of both cohorts are in backlog awaiting a charging 
assessment therefore not contributing to the cost of their care.  

Cohort 1 is a fixed cohort where Salford Care Organisation can draw down national 
funding to cover charges for all new or enhanced package of care that have been 
commissioned on or after the 19th March 2020 up to the 31st August 2020. Cohort 2 are 
individuals where the national funding can be accessed for 6 weeks or until an assessment 
is completed from 01/09/20 to the 31/03/21. For Cohort 1 only; where service users have 
not had a financial assessment, national funding will continue to be accessed to cover the 
costs of these packages until a financial assessment is carried out. The funding is 
available until 31/03/2021, however it is clear in the guidance that financial assessment 
should be done as soon as practicable to enable a return to business as usual funding 
and charging arrangements. 

WRADAS has worked closely with colleagues in Salford Care Organisation to develop a 
shared understanding of current processes across the wider system. This has already 
reaped positive developments including a shared real time workflow “tracker” which 
provides operational scrutiny and business intelligence as well as improved reporting 
mechanisms to provide strategic oversight to Senior Managers to address blockages and 
monitor progress.  

Although clear progress has been made in addressing the backlog and dealing with new 
cases being referred in, it is recognised that ongoing capacity issues require further action. 
Based on analysis to date, the following options have been considered; 

a) Do nothing. 

b) Short-term investment (e.g. agency) to clear backlog over a 6 month period. 

c) Medium -term investment to clear backlog over a 12 month period (review after 9 
months). 

d) Longer-term investment for 24 months (review after 9 and 18 months). 

 

Page 27



 

   

 

 

 

 

 

3. Current Scenario.  

3.1. On 1st April 2020 following the enactment of the Coronavirus Act of 26/03/20, government 
announced a temporary funding package covering charges for new and enhanced domiciliary 
care packages which commenced from 19th March 2020.   

National changes at the start of the Covid crisis required additional operational policy to be 
developed and enacted, this created some additional pressure for the service. 

The tables below set out the current situation – how many charging assessments need to be 
undertaken and how many are either being completed or no longer required. This is split by 
Cohort – 1 and 2 and then as a totality in Table 3. Table 3 considers Cohort 1 and 2 in totality 
as a split of 50/50 in terms of allocations to workers.  

“Not required” indicates where a service user has subsequently died, the care is no longer 
required or is a S117/CHC case and not subject to a charging assessment. To forecast the 
change in the current situation over time, we have used a notional figure to quantify the 
number of assessments a full time Charging Assessor would complete on average per week 
as 6 assessments.  

      

Cohort 1     

   Due to  

Date 
Requiring 

Assessment 
Change Growth 

Assessment 
Completed 

Not Required 

10/21/2020 268          

10/26/2020 265  -3  0  0  -3  

11/2/2020 241  -24  0  -8  -16  

11/9/2020 222  -19  -2  -8  -9  

11/16/2020 215  -7  0  -4  -3  

11/26/2020 217  2  14  -8  -4  

11/30/2020 211  -6  0  0  -6  

12/7/2020 201  -10  0  -2  -8  

12/14/2020 189  -12  0  -5  -7  

12/23/2020 181  -8  0  -1  -7  

Forecast 

1/23/2021 121  -60  0  -51  -9  

Page 28



 

   

 

 

 

2/23/2021 61  -60  0  -51  -9  

3/23/2021 1  -60  0  -51  -9  

4/23/2021 0  -1  0  0  -1  

 
 
 
      

Cohort 2     

   Due to  

Date 
Requiring 

Assessment 
Change Growth 

Assessment 
Completed 

Not Required 

10/21/2020 82          

10/26/2020 80  -2  0  -2  0  

11/2/2020 100  20  27  -5  -2  

11/9/2020 118  18  22  -1  -3  

11/16/2020 153  35  39  -1  -3  

11/26/2020 196  43  51  -4  -4  

11/30/2020 201  5  8  0  -3  

12/7/2020 199  -2  14  -14  -2  

12/14/2020 207  8  15  -5  -2  

12/23/2020 221  14  26  -6  -6  

Forecast 

1/23/2021 288  67  120  -51  -2  

2/23/2021 355  67  120  -51  -2  

3/23/2021 422  67  120  -51  -2  

4/23/2021 438  16  120  -102  -2  

5/23/2021 454  16  120  -102  -2  

6/23/2021 470  16  120  -102  -2  

7/23/2021 486  16  120  -102  -2  

8/23/2021 502  16  120  -102  -2  

9/23/2021 518  16  120  -102  -2  

10/23/2021 534  16  120  -102  -2  

      

      

      

      
 
      

Page 29



 

   

 

 

 

 

      

Cohort 1&2     

   Due to  

Date 
Requiring 

Assessment 
Change Growth 

Assessment 
Completed 

Not Required 

10/21/2020 350          

10/26/2020 345  -5  0  -2  -3  

11/2/2020 341  -4  27  -13  -18  

11/9/2020 340  -1  20  -9  -12  

11/16/2020 368  28  39  -5  -6  

11/26/2020 413  45  65  -12  -8  

11/30/2020 412  -1  8  0  -9  

12/7/2020 400  -12  14  -16  -10  

12/14/2020 396  -4  15  -10  -9  

12/23/2020 402  6  26  -7  -13  

Forecast 

1/23/2021 409  7  120  -102  -11  

2/23/2021 416  7  120  -102  -11  

3/23/2021 423  7  120  -102  -11  

4/23/2021 438  15  120  -102  -3  

5/23/2021 454  16  120  -102  -2  

6/23/2021 470  16  120  -102  -2  

7/23/2021 486  16  120  -102  -2  

8/23/2021 502  16  120  -102  -2  

9/23/2021 518  16  120  -102  -2  

10/23/2021 534  16  120  -102  -2  

 

 

4. Option (a) Do Nothing 

4.1 Based on the projections illustrated above, were we to do nothing and not increase the 
number of staff, the number of outstanding assessments would likely increase over time, were 
current staffing levels to remain static. This also results in a loss of income from charges to 
the Integrated Fund. 

Page 30



 

   

 

 

 

Charges for service users start from the first Monday after the initial assessment visit/contact. 
Although not specifically recorded by the service a review of current processes has indicated 
that the estimated average amount of time from a service user being referred for a charging 
assessment to the initial assessment visit / contact taking place is in the region of 8 weeks. 
This represent a potential loss of client income to the integrated system of circa £260K per 
annum.  

The assumptions behind this are set out in the table below. 

 

Assumptions Value Unit 

Current wait time 8 Weeks 

No of new referrals 120 per month 

% of referrals - chargeable 45%   

Ave Charge per week £50 per service user per week 

Total loss of income £259,200 per annum 

 

 

 

5. Breakdown of investment costs.  

5.1 In order to effect any positive change, the remaining 3 options involve the Adult 
Commissioning Committee approving investment into the team in order to recruit additional 
staff. Finance has provided an illustration of the financial costs to recruit additional capacity 
into the Charging Assessment Team. 

The initial cost is the unit costs per Charging Assessor (CA) and an Administrative Support 
Officer (admin) within WRADAS on an annual basis.  

Using data of current demand and estimating the time required to clear the backlog and 
undertake ongoing assessments, we have predicted that the service requires 3 additional 
Charging Assessors and a dedicated Admin Support Officer and the costs are calculated 
below as a total investment of £110,035.87 per annum. 

Options b and c were both considered and rejected on the basis that previous past and recent 
experience of recruitment (both internal and external) has demonstrated how difficult it is to 
recruit suitably qualified and/or experienced staff as the roles are specialist and require an 

Page 31



 

   

 

 

 

understanding of social security benefits, particularly the complexities of means testing. It is 
extremely unlikely that agency staff would have this knowledge/skills and furthermore, it is 
unlikely that we would be successful in recruiting internally or externally to a 6 or 12 month 
position. 

 

 

 

 
  

3x CA 3x CA £    85,009.50  

1x Admin 1x Admin £    25,026.37  

Total Total £  110,035.87  

 

6. Forecasts based on an additional 3 Charging Assessors.  

6.1 The forecasts detailed below show a direct comparison with the tables reflecting the “do 
nothing” scenario in 3.1.  

These predictions are based on an assumption that investment is secured and successful 
recruitment of 3 additional Charging Assessors undertaking an average of 6 assessments 
per week from 24th March 2021. 

 

 Cohort 1     

    Due to  

 Date 
Requiring 

Assessment 
Change Growth 

Assessment 
Completed 

Not Required 

 10/21/2020 268          

 10/26/2020 265  -3  0  0  -3  

 11/2/2020 241  -24  0  -8  -16  

 11/9/2020 222  -19  -2  -8  -9  

 11/16/2020 215  -7  0  -4  -3  

 11/26/2020 217  2  14  -8  -4  

Page 32



 

   

 

 

 

 11/30/2020 211  -6  0  0  -6  

 12/7/2020 201  -10  0  -2  -8  

 12/14/2020 189  -12  0  -5  -7  

 12/23/2020 181  -8  0  -1  -7  

 Forecast 

 1/23/2021 121  -60  0  -51  -9  

 2/23/2021 61  -60  0  -51  -9  

 3/23/2021 1  -60  0  -51  -9  

 4/23/2021 0  -1  0  0  -1  

       

 Cohort 2     

    Due to  

 Date 
Requiring 

Assessment 
Change Growth 

Assessment 
Completed 

Not Required 

 10/21/2020 82          

 10/26/2020 80  -2  0  -2  0  

 11/2/2020 100  20  27  -5  -2  

 11/9/2020 118  18  22  -1  -3  

 11/16/2020 153  35  39  -1  -3  

 11/26/2020 196  43  51  -4  -4  

 11/30/2020 201  5  8  0  -3  

 12/7/2020 199  -2  14  -14  -2  

 12/14/2020 207  8  15  -5  -2  

 12/23/2020 221  14  26  -6  -6  

 Forecast 

 1/23/2021 288  67  120  -51  -2  

 2/23/2021 355  67  120  -51  -2  

 3/23/2021 422  67  120  -51  -2  

 4/23/2021 358  -64  120  -182  -2  

 5/23/2021 294  -64  120  -182  -2  

 6/23/2021 230  -64  120  -182  -2  

 7/23/2021 166  -64  120  -182  -2  

 8/23/2021 102  -64  120  -182  -2  

 9/23/2021 38  -64  120  -182  -2  

 10/23/2021 -26  -64  120  -182  -2  

 

 

 

      

Page 33



 

   

 

 

 

 

 Cohort 1&2     

    Due to  

 Date 
Requiring 

Assessment 
Change Growth 

Assessment 
Completed 

Not Required 

 10/21/2020 350          

 10/26/2020 345  -5  0  -2  -3  

 11/2/2020 341  -4  27  -13  -18  

 11/9/2020 340  -1  20  -9  -12  

 11/16/2020 368  28  39  -5  -6  

 11/26/2020 413  45  65  -12  -8  

 11/30/2020 412  -1  8  0  -9  

 12/7/2020 400  -12  14  -16  -10  

 12/14/2020 396  -4  15  -10  -9  

 12/23/2020 402  6  26  -7  -13  

 Forecast 

 1/23/2021 409  7  120  -102  -11  

 2/23/2021 416  7  120  -102  -11  

 3/23/2021 423  7  120  -102  -11  

 4/23/2021 358  -65  120  -182  -3  

 5/23/2021 294  -64  120  -182  -2  

 6/23/2021 230  -64  120  -182  -2  

 7/23/2021 166  -64  120  -182  -2  

 8/23/2021 102  -64  120  -182  -2  

 9/23/2021 38  -64  120  -182  -2  

 10/23/2021 -26  -64  120  -182  -2  

 

WRADAS has undertaken a number of actions to mitigate the risks with the backlog over the 
past 6 months. These include as a temporary measure, diverting existing available resources 
to support the team. A part time Direct Payments Adviser due to retire in March 2020 returned 
to work on a temporary basis to undertake charging assessments at an additional cost of 
£7,192.51. We have been advised by HR that this member of staff has to cease her 
employment on 31.03.2021. 

An existing WRADAS Support Officer was deployed into providing direct support for the 
chargers (the gathering of information from clients etc) leaving the other 2 full time staff to 
take on her work for the wider WRADAS. We liaised with the Care Organisation to enable a 
former member of the team to return to work on a part time temporary basis as a charger and 

Page 34



 

   

 

 

 

use the time to meet the requirements of her Social Work placement at nil cost. Her placement 
ended in November 2020. 

Two members of staff have also taken up the offer of temporary overtime to be funded by 
WRADAS budget.  

It has been estimated that the additional requested investment and resource would have a 
positive impact on this waiting time. It is difficult to accurately quantify this but it is expected 
that waiting times would reduce to around 4 – 6 weeks. This would have a beneficial impact 
on the integrated funds financial position in relation to client contributions collected and could 
be in the region of £130K per annum for 4 weeks wait times and £65K per annum for 6 weeks 
wait times. 

 

Net financial impact due to 
reduced waiting times     

  
6 weeks 
wait 

4 weeks 
wait 

Resource Ask £110,036 £110,036 

Increased Client Income -£64,800 -£129,600 

Net Ask to IF £45,236 -£19,564 

 

The proposed investment of £110K would still be required in full to fund the extra resource in 
the council if approved. However, due to the extra client income it is anticipated it would be 
collected and the fact that client income is passed through to the integrated fund the net 
funding ask could be reduced or potentially generate a surplus depending on the reduction 
to waiting times achieved as a result of the additional investment.  

 

A note of caution should be exercised here in that there are several assumptions both in 
terms of additional income to be collected and changes to waiting times that would impact on 
the true financial cost of investment. Due to the complex nature of the overall client income 
collected by the system it is not anticipated this will be that possible to disaggregate. 

 

Whilst the focus of this paper is those people who have commenced a new or enhanced care 
package post March 2020 cohorts, there is a pre March 2020 cohort who have not yet had a 

Page 35



 

   

 

 

 

charging assessment completed and work will be required to produce an action plan to 
address these outstanding cases. 

Whilst the short-term objective is to ensure that capacity in the team is sufficient to clear the 
backlog, work to better understand the current service delivery model and future performance 
measures has already commenced. This will provide a platform to track through the impact 
investment for example, on waiting times.  

A number of positive developments have already been implemented over the past 6 months 
which have improved communications and led to efficiencies in operations across the system. 
For example, actions are agreed at a fortnightly Operational Management Group and 
monitors progress on the tracker. The Charging Assessment Team Manager has developed 
detailed operational guidance for the team which will monitor performance and timescales 
and address any barriers in the workflow process. The team has now been granted access 
to Searchlight the DWP system to support evidence gathering where a client is in receipt of 
social security benefits. 

The critical issue remains capacity and the temporary measures put in place have now been 
exhausted and a longer-term solution is urgently required. 

 

7. Recommendations 

7.1 The Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to: 

Approve investment of £110,035.87 per annum for a 24 month period in order to clear the 
backlog of charging assessments and to maintain service levels into the future at the reduced 
waiting time in order to provide an equitable service for all and secure ongoing income for the 
Integrated Fund in order to provide services. The most sustainable approach would be to 
increase levels by 3 additional Charging Assessor’s and a Support officer as the role is likely 
to require training due its specialist nature and the current lack of routes in for example; 
apprenticeships with ongoing review of progress. 

 

Name (Author): Catherine Connors 

Job title: Principal Officer Welfare Rights and Debt Advice Service. 

 

Page 36



 

Adults Commissioning Committee 

Part 1 

Agenda item number: 6 

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information  

13th January 2021  

Report of: Joint Head of Planning and Performance 

Date of paper: 17th December 2020 

Subject: Adults Assurance Framework Report  

In case of query please contact: Emma Reid 

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to) 

Priority Selection 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research:   

Integrated Community Care Services (Adult 
Services): 

X 

Children’s and Maternity Services:   

Primary Care:   

Enabling Transformation:   

 

 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



 

Purpose of paper:  
 
The purpose of this paper is to provide the Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC) with an 
update on the latest position in relation to the strategic annual plan for Adults services and 
the risks associated with its delivery.   
 

This paper forms part of the wider assurances to ACC with regards to performance, locality 
assurance and strategic programme delivery and should be read in conjunction with other 
papers to the Committee including but not limited to any financial, quality and / or 
performance reports as well as any updates related to the COVID-19 pandemic response / 
recovery planning. 
 
Please note that this is the first publication of this progress report (assurance framework) 
and so feedback is welcomed from members of the Adults Commissioning Committee.  
Pending feedback from this committee, this report can be provided on a regular basis; the 
same can be provided for Children’s and Primary Care Commissioning. 
 

Further explanatory information required 

Question Answer 

How will this benefit the health 
and wellbeing of Salford 
residents or the Clinical 
Commissioning Group? 

Strategic planning is the vital to ensure we 
continue to plan for the future needs of our 
population.  We must continue to provide 
assurance of our delivery against those 
plans by managing our performance and 
risks effectively and reporting timely, 
accurate information to our stakeholders. 
This report provides a high level summary 
of the latest position in relation to the 
strategic annual plan for Adults services 
along with any risks to its delivery and plans 
to mitigate those risks.   

What risks may arise as a result 
of this paper? How can they be 
mitigated? 

None identified.  Details of specific risks 
relating to the Adults services programme 
are detailed in this paper. 

What equality-related risks may 
arise as a result of this paper?  
How will these be mitigated? 

None identified. 

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 

Although this paper does not seek to 
specifically address any existing high risks, 

Page 38



 

Question Answer 

organisation? If so what are they 
and how does this paper reduce 
them? 

it is hoped that by providing focussed 
assurances around progress against our 
plans and risk information, we will be better 
placed to manage our programme risks and 
any areas of concern in relation to the 
strategic plan for Adults services. 

 

Areas of high risk have been summarised 
within this report.  Detailed risk treatment 
plans are included in appendices as 
appropriate. 

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated 
with this paper. 

None identified. 

Please identify any current 
services or roles that may be 
affected by issues within this 
paper. 

 

N/A   

 
Footnote: 

 

Members of Adults Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly. Once papers 
are distributed no amendments are possible.

Page 39



 

   

 

Document development 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Public engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Clinical engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social 
Value and the impacts on the residents of 
Salford socially, economically and 
environmentally (including climate 
change)? 

  X   

P
age 40



 

   

 

Process Yes No 
Not 
applicable 

Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 
actual report) 

Outcome 

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts? 

(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed)  

 X    

Legal advice sought 
 

 

X    

Presented to any informal groups or 
committees (including partnership groups) 
for engagement or other formal 
governance groups for comments / 
approval?  

(Please specify in comments) 

 X    

Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 
and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work 

P
age 41



 

   

 

Adults Assurance Framework Report 

1. Executive summary 

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC) 
with an update on the latest position in relation to the strategic annual plan for Adults 
services and the risks associated with its delivery.   
 

This paper forms part of the wider assurances to ACC with regards to performance, 
locality assurance and strategic programme delivery and should be read in conjunction 
with other papers to this Committee including but not limited to any financial, quality and 
/ or performance reports as well as any updates related to the COVID-19 pandemic 
response / recovery planning. 
 

 
2. Strategic Annual Plan Update 

 

2.1 ACC members will recall receiving a comprehensive planning update as part of a 
COVID-19 Response and Recovery paper in July 2020.  

 
2.2 In line with national and GM planning requirements Salford refreshed its Locality 

Plan in 2019/20.  The locality plan is the ‘blueprint’ for well-being, health and 
social care in Salford; it is a public health led, system plan. Launched in April 
2016, it explains how providers of public services - like the NHS, Salford City 
Council, Fire Service and Police - will work closely together with the private and 
voluntary sector so services work better and cost less.  The refreshed Locality 
Plan for 2020-25 was approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board in June 2020. 

 

2.3 The 2020/21 annual plan for health and social care was jointly developed across 
the CCG and Salford City Council, led by the Joint Head of Planning and 
Performance.  

  
2.4 For 2020/21 annual planning was split under 6 strategic workstreams and 

continued to build on the joint planning arrangements already in place across 
children’s health and social care, population health, adults’ health and social care 
and primary care.  Working closely with the Integrated Commissioning Integrated 
Leadership Team (ILT) we agreed a joint approach to planning for 2020/21 which 
included facilitated workshops across the following themes: 

 Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research, 

 Primary Care,  

 Joint Children’s and Maternity Services,  

 Joint Adult Services (including Learning Disabilities and Autism),  

Page 42



 

   

 

 All age Mental Health Services,  

 Enabling Transformation (CCG Only) 
 

2.5 Updated planning approach in light of COVID-19 
 

2.6 Normally at this time of year, our annual plans are fully complete, reflected in 
staff objectives and reporting on delivery has commenced. The COVID-19 
interruption means that these current plans: 

 include some actions that require further definition, 

 may miss some recently emerging work, and 

 are missing the full range of work associated with COVID-19 response and 
recovery, some of which remains unknown. 
 

2.7 In prioritising work and determining an approach, due regard is being given to: 

 addressing inequalities, including those which may have been exacerbated 
by COVID-19 

 ‘building back better and fairer’ 

 engaging with the public 

 engaging with clinicians and partner organisations, including the VCSE sector 

 building social value 
 

2.8 The strategic aims, programmes and priorities for integrated commissioning were 
agreed by the joint commissioning committees in July 2020.  Appendix 1 shows 
the annual plan for integrated commissioning (Adults) for 2020/21 as it currently 
stands; including the mid-year strategic programme updates for Adult services.   

 
2.9 Each component part of the annual plan is supported by the Integrated 

Leadership Team / Executive Team and, for children’s services, primary care 
and adult services respectively, the Children’s, Primary Care and Adults 
Commissioning Committees have endorsed.  It should be noted that annual plan 
will be used as a live document and will be adapted as needed over the year as 
the situation changes and more is known about the impact of COVID-19 and 
recovery requirements.   

 
2.10 It should be stressed that whilst some work has taken place with regard to an 

assessment of our plans against available commissioning staff capacity, this 
remains uncertain as it is currently still compromised due to the COVID-19 
response and recovery and could be impacted further with further waves and the 
mass vaccination and testing programmes over the coming months.  As such 
continuous prioritisation will be required in year, which will be reflected through 
regular reviews of the live annual plan. 

 
2.11 It should also be noted that the NHS is anticipating further national planning 

guidance which is likely to influence our priorities and work plans.  Although to 

Page 43



 

   

 

some extent this guidance is already predicted within our plans, it is expected 
that for this reason also there will be an iterative process to refining annual plans 
during this year.  We intend that this will leave us well placed in respect of our 
plans for 2021/22. 

 
2.12 National Planning Guidance 
 
2.13 On the 23rd December 2020 the CCG received a letter from NHS England (see 

Appendix 2) outlining operational priorities for winter and 2021/22.  In summary 
the letter details five key areas for managing the remainder of 2020/21 as 
follows: 

 
A. Responding to Covid-19 demand 
B. Pulling out all the stops to implement the Covid-19 vaccination programme 
C. Maximising capacity in all settings to treat non-Covid-19 patients 
D. Responding to other emergency demand and managing winter pressures 
E. Supporting the health and wellbeing of our workforce 
 

2.14 The letter further outlines the approach to planning for 2021/22 with more details 
on the financial framework to follow closer to the end of the current financial 
year.  In the meantime, systems are asked to continue to; 

 

 Recover non-covid services, in a way that reduces variation in access and 
outcomes between different parts of the country. 

 Strengthen delivery of local People Plans.  

 Address the health inequalities that covid has exposed.  

 Accelerate the planned expansion in mental health services  

 Prioritise investment in primary and community care, to deal with the backlog 
and likely increase in care required for people with ongoing health conditions, 
as well as support prevention through vaccinations and immunisations.  

 Build on the development of effective partnership working at place and 
system level.  
 

2.15 Mid-Year update 
 
2.16 The Annual Plan 2020/21 for Adults integrated commissioning is being monitored 
 through the CCG and Council’s corporate management system, Pentana and as 
 part of the staff appraisals process.  For access to Pentana, please contact the 
 Joint Head of Planning and Performance.  
 
2.17 Progress against the annual plan is reported to the CCG Governing Body and 

Council’s Corporate Management Team on a six monthly basis in May and 
November.  Appendix 1 shows the latest position reported; There are currently 
44 actions underpinning the annual plan for adults integrated commissioning in 

Page 44



 

   

 

Salford.  36 of which are marked as ‘on track’ and 7 of which are marked as 
completed (please note that this assessment was conducted ahead of wave 2 
and the immunisation programme preparations and so may not be reflective of 
the position at the time of presenting this report).  There is currently 1 action in 
the plan which is marked as ‘off track’.  A detailed update for this action is 
included at Appendix 3.   

 

 
 

 

 

3. Programme Risk Update 

3.1  Since the annual plan for 2020/21 has now been finalised, work is required to re-
align and review existing adults programme risks.  Extensive work is required in 
this area to ensure that the risks captured continue to mirror the current risk 
profile for adults integrated commissioning and our operating environment; this 
work is reflected in the planning and performance team’s work plan and further 
updates will be provided in future reports.     

 
3.2 A summary of the existing adults programme risk profile is provided in this 

section for information.  Live information regarding this programme risk register 
can be found in the Adults Commissioning Committee portal within Pentana.  For 
access, please contact the Joint Head of Planning and Performance.  

 
3.3 This is the first publication of this report; in future reports, the full programme risk 

register for adults integrated commissioning will be included as an appendix, 
pending the work required to review and update its content as mentioned in 
paragraph 3.1.   

 
3.4 There are currently 7 risks on the programme risk register for adults integrated 

commissioning, none of which are scored as High (Red) as outlined overleaf.  
Please note that one of the risks in the register has not yet been assessed 
(scored) and is therefore not included in the heatmap to follow, which shows only 
6 risks in total. 

 

Page 45



 

   

 

 
 
 

 

 
3.5 As summarised above; there have been no new risks raised in the last month 

and no risks have been closed in the same period.  1 risk has a decreasing 
trend, in relation to ‘Provision of T3 Specialist Weight Management Service ‘and 
there are no risks with an increasing trend.   It should also be noted that out of a 
total 7 programme risks, 5 risks saw no changes as a result of their latest review.  
The planning and performance team will seek to understand why these risks are 
static as part of the review work mentioned in paragraph 3.1 and this will be 
monitored closely in the next review cycle to ensure that risks are being 
appropriately reviewed / assessed and updated in line with the constantly 
changing operating environment.  This is particularly important as we continue to 
respond to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

4. Recommendations 

4.1 The adults commissioning committee is asked to: 

 Note the content of this report for assurance purposes, 

 Note the specific updates provided for actions reported as ‘Off-track’,  

 Note the updated risk position acknowledging the work required to review and 
update the adults commissioning risk register. 

 
Further to the recommendations above and in order to ensure continuous 
improvements to this report, ACC members are invited to comment on the format and 
content of this new report and consider if and when they would like to receive this type 
of assurance update in future meetings. 

Page 46



 

   

 

 

 

Name (Author):  Emma Reid 
Job title:  Joint Head of Planning and Performance 

 

APPENDICES: 
Appendix 1 – Annual Plan for Integrated Commissioning (Adults) 2020/21 – mid-year 
update 
Appendix 2 - Operational priorities for winter and 2021 22   
Appendix 3 – Annual Plan for Integrated Commissioning (Adults) 2020/21 – Actions Off-
track 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 - Adults Assurance Framework Report 
 
Generated on: 04 January 2021 

  

 

1 

 

"We want all adults in Salford to live independent, fulfilling and productive lives which will help 
them to manage their own health and wellbeing and ensure a healthy life expectancy. For those 
that need care and help, we want them to feel confident that their care is compassionate, of high 

quality and meets their needs." 

            

As outlined in our Annual Plan for Health and Social Care Commissioning in Salford, the integrated 
commissioning plan for adult services is split across 8 strategic programme areas that are designed to 
support delivery of a range of services across the following areas - Transition into adulthood; Strengths-
based approaches; Prevention first, reduce demand, high quality, safe care for those that need it most; 
Independent, active lives, opportunities and protective factors, personal resilience, connections and 
supportive communities, manage own health, healthy life expectancy; and, Carer friendly city, End of life 
and palliative care, dignified death.  
 
The latest position for each of the strategic programme areas is detailed in this appendix along with a 
summary of progress for each action in the plan.   
 
Adults Social Care Paul Walsh 

We have a programme of development work that is focussed on a number of key services and pathways. 
These are progressing under a dedicated work plan and programme board: 
 
Care Homes: To ensure our care home market is able to provide high quality support to older people with 
higher levels of need, typically needs associated with complex dementia and frailty including for people 
with and without nursing needs. This is a current commissioning gap in our market. This work will include a 
new service specification, free rates, service model and service pathways. It will require joint planning and 
delivery with market providers. 
 
Home Care: To ensure our Home Care (domiciliary care) services are able to ensure they are responsive 
to the overnight care needs of vulnerable people and also more responsive to variable levels of need. This 
will mean more people will be able to have their needs met in their own home environment, reducing the 
need to seek support from a care home setting.  While the current service specification describes 
approaches that would meet overnight needs and also to response to variation in the levels of need, the 
current service model does not respond to this. This project will seek to test and learn and apply an 
approach within the existing provider market. It will require a co-design approach and an increase in 
provision capacity. There will also be a focus on lower level needs support and ‘pop-in’ visits to review the 
current approach and test new approaches linked to strengths-based community led support. Salford 
benchmarks high (in GM) for the number for short, pop-in visits and therefore our ambition is to secure 
learning from other areas and develop a best-practice approach for Salford 
 
Extra Care: A new service specification was approved in January 2020. COVID-19 as impacted on the 
progress for implementing this new specification but this work has now recommenced. The new 
specification will lead to a new service model that will enable a greater range of needs to be met within 
Extra Care service. This will mean a reduction in the need for care home placements at the lower end of 
need as more people will be able to take advantage of the ‘home for life’ approach delivered by Extra Care. 
Over the next few months, we will be developing our approach (with Salford Care Organisation (SCO)) to 
the tendering of the new care service within Extra Care. The recent business case for the expansion of 
Extra Care also identified the cost benefit of Extra Care and this will be applied to the tender process for 
the existing schemes. 
 
Direct Payment: Direct Payments provide people with more choice and control about how they utilise their 
personal budget for care. Often people who have a direct payment make more cost-effective choices and 
those choices are more adaptable to the persons changing levels of need. Salford has traditionally had low 

Page 49



Appendix 1 - Adults Assurance Framework Report 
 
Generated on: 04 January 2021 

  

 

2 

levels of take up of Direct Payments amongst people with eligible care needs. We will be working through a 
project over this financial year to test and learn new approaches to delivering more Direct Payment 
solutions for people who have a personal budget, i.e., those people who have eligible needs under the 
Care Act. 
 
Learning Disability (LD) and Complex Needs: There is an opportunity to review the care and support 
offered to people who live in our Support Tenancy Network. This includes overnight care options and 
technology enabled care. The LD and Complex Needs service will work with the Care Providers in the 
Supported Tenancy schemes to develop test of change for new service models. These will be founded on 
the Strengths Based approached and best value. There will be a stronger focus on technology including 
the knowledge and awareness amongst staff and people living in the schemes. 

            

2020-21 Actions Reference No. RAG 

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project 
scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 
'Adult Social Care Market Shaping' 

ICASC2021.001 Completed 

Define scope for needs assessment to support development and 
publication of a new Market Position Statement for Salford 

ICASC2021.002 In Progress 

Map financial flows in Adult Social Care ICASC2021.003 In Progress 

Care market following budget announcements ICASC2021.004 In Progress 
 

            

Adults Care Pathway Harry Golby 

This programme includes a range of actions largely aimed at improving hospital scheduled care and 
cancer services.  Most of these services have been significantly affected by the pandemic - the challenges 
to provide safe care in the context of COVID-19 has created significant capacity issues and these have 
been compounded by the pressure of meeting the needs of hospital inpatients with COVID-19 during the 
first and second wave of cases.  In large part the response has been nationally dictated but locally 
delivered, i.e., the rapid expansion of virtual consultations and national clinical prioritisation exercise to 
ensure, for example, cancer services are maintained. 
 
This means that some aspects of this programme have been accelerated, like the transformation of 
outpatient services and many aspects of the Greater Manchester cancer plan.  Progress against other 
developments was initially delayed by the pandemic and may have had to be refocused, but are now 
progressing, albeit at a slower pace than was originally anticipated, for example the rollout of the DECIDE 
(dermatology) training and transfer of orthopaedics from the Trafford site. 

            

2020-21 Actions Reference No. RAG 

Review of Neuro-rehab pathway for personalised packages of 
care and care pathways 

ICACP2021.001 In Progress 

GM Dermatology - Roll out and implementation of the GM model 
framework, Clinical Pathways for key conditions and GM wide 
delivery of the Decide Dermatology Education and Training 
programme and review of GM wide advice and guidance 

ICACP2021.002 In Progress 

Evaluation of the direct to test pathway for endoscopy at Salford 
Royal Foundation Trust (SRFT) 

ICACP2021.003 In Progress 

Review and scope the delivery of Rapid access diagnostics for ICACP2021.004 Completed 

Page 50



Appendix 1 - Adults Assurance Framework Report 
 
Generated on: 04 January 2021 

  

 

3 

cancer for Salford patients 

Undertake service improvements for wheelchair services 
including the introduction of personal health budgets 

ICACP2021.005 Completed 

Work with SRFT on improvements to diagnostics performance ICACP2021.006 In Progress 

Outpatient reform - To ensure main providers meet 30% 
requirements from Long Term Plan (Digital) 

ICACP2021.007 In Progress 

Communication between hospital and primary care (clinical 
communication group) 

ICACP2021.008 Assigned 

Support the transfer of elective orthopaedics from Trafford ICACP2021.009 In Progress 

Deliver local actions outlined in CCGs cancer plan aligned to GM 
Cancer Plan 

ICACP2021.010 In Progress 

 

            

Adults Community Health Care & Voluntary, Community and 
Social Enterprise (VCSE) 

Tori Quinn; Paul Walsh 

Community Health Services 
 
All community health services continue to work through a process of reinstating services and are also 
planning for an enhancement of community services to manage the rehabilitation needs of those who have 
had COVID-19 and those who have been shielded over recent months. To assist with this Salford Care 
Organisation has set up a Community Recovery Cell which meets weekly. 
 
Although virtual appointments will remain the default method of care, risk assessments to enable the 
resumption of face to face appointments for the most vulnerable / those with specific conditions are 
considered by the Recovery Cell. The resumption of some face to face appointments have been approved 
for the following areas (please note this list is not exhaustive): 
 

• Podiatry  

• Cardiovascular Rehabilitation          

• Speech and Language Therapy  

• Diabetes Outpatients  

• Home Oxygen Therapy Service  

• Pulmonary Rehabilitation  

• Musculoskeletal CATS (Clinical Assessment and Treatment Service) 

• Complex Care of the Elderly and General Geriatrics Outpatient Clinics  
 
On 31st July 2020 NHS England published a letter on the third phase of the NHS response to COVID-19. 
This letter replaced all previous guidance. In relation to community services this letter states the following: 
 
“General practice, community and optometry services should restore activity to usual levels where clinically 
appropriate and reach out proactively to clinically vulnerable patients and those whose care may have 
been delayed.” 
 
“Community health services crisis responsiveness should be enhanced in line with the goals set out in the 
Long Term Plan and should continue to support patients who have recovered from the acute phase of 
COVID-19 but need ongoing rehabilitation and other community health services. Community health teams 
should fully resume appropriate and safe home visiting care for all those vulnerable/shielding patients who 
need them” 

Page 51



Appendix 1 - Adults Assurance Framework Report 
 
Generated on: 04 January 2021 

  

 

4 

 
“From 1 September 2020, hospitals and community health and social care partners should fully embed the 
discharge to assess processes.”[1] 
 
The CCG will be working with colleagues at the SCO, via various routes to ensure these measures are put 
in place and services continue to be stepped back up to pre-COVID-19 levels, where clinically appropriate 
and safe to do so. 
 
[1] NHS England, “Third phase of NHS response to COVID-19 letter” (31st July 2020)  
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/07/Phase-3-letter-July-
31-2020.pdf 

            

2020-21 Actions Reference No. RAG 

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project 
scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 
'Adults Integrated Community' 

ICACH2021.001 In Progress 

Working with partners, implement monitoring and reporting 
systems for the next phase of the adults transformation new 
models of care (as per agreed business cases) and that learning 
is fed into future commissioning decisions. 

ICACH2021.002 Assigned 

Review and agree with PCNs the commissioning of Well Being 
Matters for 2021/22 

ICACH2021.003 Assigned 

Complete the 2020/21 Service Level Agreement and develop 
longer term integrated commissioning arrangements with the 
Community for Voluntary Services (CVS) 

ICACH2021.004 In Progress 

Develop a strategic approach to the reconfiguration of 
intermediate/community beds across the city 

ICACH2021.005 Completed 

Implement actions from the Carer's Strategy ICACH2021.006 In Progress 

Develop, implement and monitor year 1 of the 5 year Community 
for Voluntary Services (CVS) Third Sector fund 

ICACH2021.008 In Progress 

Support the development and commissioning of a local Advice & 
Guidance system 

ICACH2021.009 Overdue 

 

            

Adults Public Health Dr Muna Abdel Aziz 

The Locality Plan for Salford 2020-25 has been launched and there are pre-commitments towards health 
inequalities and co-production with local communities prior to COVID-19. The pandemic has highlighted 
and exacerbated these inequalities. The Salford Time to AcT (STAT) group is a subgroup of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board that meets weekly to consider the direct and indirect impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic 
on health inequalities and put in place immediate and medium-term actions and commitments. 
 
The common approach across partner organisations for individual risk assessments and health checks 

was one of the first measures put in place and this has grown beyond the initial focus on Black, Asian and 
Minority Ethnic (BAME) groups to all individuals in the frontline who may be at higher or significant risk of 

COVID-19. 
 
The Great Eight priorities for Salford have come some way to deliver; and the refresh of the inclusive 

Page 52

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/07/Phase-3-letter-July-31-2020.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/07/Phase-3-letter-July-31-2020.pdf


Appendix 1 - Adults Assurance Framework Report 
 
Generated on: 04 January 2021 

  

 

5 

economy, equality, and strategies before the end of the year are a chance to embed health inequalities as 
a central theme. 
 
The Locality Plan recognises that the best solutions can be put in place much faster when they are co-
produced with local communities – in this context the specific priorities for the Adults system priorities are: 
 

• Mental health promotion and suicide prevention  

• Child poverty to focus specifically on families  

• Social isolation for older people  

• Physical activity (walking and cycling) as part of the response to climate change  
 
The commissioned public health services have continued to prioritise service delivery throughout the 
lockdown, recovery and restrictions. Business continuity and delivery plans are in place. 

            

2020-21 Actions Reference No. RAG 

CURE Implementation and Evaluation ICAPH2021.002 In Progress 

Strategic review of Salford Community Leisure ICAPH2021.003 Assigned 

Develop a physical activities plan ICAPH2021.004 Assigned 

Develop a whole system approach to reduce smoking prevalence 
in Salford - smoke free Salford 

ICAPH2021.006 In Progress 

Implement the GM Alcohol and Drug Strategy including service 
provision 

ICAPH2021.007 In Progress 

Develop and Implement service improvement proposals for 
sexual health 

ICAPH2021.008 In Progress 

Review weight management pathways ICAPH2021.009 In Progress 
 

            

Urgent Care Services Stephen Tilley 

Work on the Salford wide urgent care review is ongoing. It has understandably been delayed by the 
COVID-19 Pandemic but it is planned that a business case detailing the new model will be presented at 
Primary Care Commissioning Group prior to the end of the financial year 2020/21. 
New Models of Urgent Care Implemented: 
Since the 24th August 2020 Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust (SRFT) has been operating a Pre-
Emergency Department (ED) Registration Service. This service has been put in place to support the 
Hospital Trust to manage attendances at ED in the most appropriate way and reduce pressure within the 
department. On average this service leads to about 40+ patients a day being streamed away from the ED 
to more appropriate services. This represents 20- 30% of all adult patients who have attended the ED (this 
doesn’t include people taken to ED by Ambulance).  
 
The Local Community Assessment Service (LCAS), where possible will aim to address the needs of the 
patient during the assessments. This may include sign posting to more appropriate services, self-
management or other community based services including pharmacies. Where clinically appropriate, 
patients can be booked back into their own GP, extended access clinics, onsite GP or be referred to 
community nursing as indicated.  
 
The second phase of this work is known as Call Before You Attend.  This will encourage patients to 
call NHS 111 before they attend the ED.  This expansion of the NHS 111 service is being called 
‘NHS 111 First’ and additional capacity for the national NHS 111 teams is being put into place.  

Page 53



Appendix 1 - Adults Assurance Framework Report 
 
Generated on: 04 January 2021 

  

 

6 

 
The aim of the service is to decrease the number of patients advised to directly attend the ED and increase 
the number of calls going to the LCAS for clinical assessment first. It is too early to report on the 
performance of the service but when modelling has been done a reduction of c.25% of ED attendances 
has been predicted. 

            

2020-21 Actions Reference No. RAG 

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project 
scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 
'Urgent Care Redesign' 

ICAUCS2021.001 Completed 

Develop proposals for the redesign of health and social care 
delivery models (Urgent Care) 

ICAUCS2021.002 In Progress 

Development and implementation of the Salford Urgent 
Emergency Care by Appointment programme 

ICAUCS2021.003 Completed 

 

            

Adults Mental Health Judd Skelton 

Living Well is currently being piloted in Broughton with multi disciplinary team operational. Good progress 
in developing the Living Well model to align with NHS Long Term Plan priority around new models of 
community mental health support. Positive conversations and dialogue with the Primary Care Networks in 
developing Mental Health Practitioner roles which will be part of a wider future Living Well service.  
  
Living Well is seeing a multi-disciplinary and multi-organisational structure emerging, comprising statutory 
and voluntary sector provision and is seeing effective connectivity being developed with Wellbeing Matters.  
  
Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) Grants programme progressing in identifying 
solutions to meet key priority areas including Loss, Substance Misuse and Family Support   

            

2020-21 Actions Reference No. RAG 

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project 
scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 
'Adults Primary/Community Mental 

ICAMH2021.001 Completed 

Commission Healthwatch Salford to undertake engagement work 
to inform the evaluation of Living Well 

ICAMH2021.003 Assigned 

Review Mental Health support available to health and care staff ICAMH2021.004 In Progress 

Grants service for VCSE linking to living well ICAMH2021.005 In Progress 

Oversee the pilot phase of Living Well in Broughton with a view 
to further rollout to another neighbourhood during 2020-21 

ICAMH2021.007 In Progress 

 

            

Mental Health Crisis & Hospital to Home Judd Skelton 

New Greater Manchester (GM) 24/7 Crisis response service established via the GM Clinical Assessment 
Service with all Salford callers going through to Greater Manchester Mental Health (GMMH).  
  
Work underway with GMMH to scope out and develop provision regarding Crisis Beds (to prevent hospital 
admission and facilitate discharge) and a Safe Haven/Listening Lounge (as an alternative to A&E).  

Page 54



Appendix 1 - Adults Assurance Framework Report 
 
Generated on: 04 January 2021 

  

 

7 

  
VCSE Grants programme launched for suicide prevention initiatives and Suicide Prevention First Aid 
training being developed to roll out to Salford’s advice sector (Citizen’s Advice Bureau, Welfare Rights, Job 
Centre Plus etc).   

            

2020-21 Actions Reference No. RAG 

More work on delivering an improved health (including mental 
health) offer for care leavers and improved transitions between 
children's and adult services 

ICAMHC2021.001 In Progress 

Review mental health care pathways including: role and function 
of adult mental health residential care and supported 
accommodation 

ICAMHC2021.002 In Progress 

Implement crisis interventions for adults which provide 
alternatives to A&E and inpatient services and ensure fidelity to 
crisis and homes based treatment requirements 

ICAMHC2021.003 In Progress 

Suicide prevention training ICAMHC2021.004 In Progress 

Quality assurance for MH Placements ICAMHC2021.005 Assigned 
 

            

Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) Judd Skelton 

Performance improved regarding waiting times with local data for September 2020 showing that Salford 
CCG is meeting the target for 6 and 18 weeks waiting time measures with 81.3% being seen in 6 weeks 
and 96.8% being seen in 18 weeks. It is expected that this will show in published data in November / 
December.  
  
Workforce discussions taking place at a GM level with regards creating a more diverse and sustainable 
workforce.  
  
Bereavement Counselling identified as a gap in therapeutic provision and so work is underway with Six 
Degrees to improve support to people bereaved.   

            

2020-21 Actions Reference No. RAG 

Work in partnership with IAPT providers to identify solutions to 
workforce challenges which are impacting on IAPT performance 

ICAIAPT2021.001 In Progress 

Improve pathways between IAPT services and key physical 
health services such as Health Psychology, Cardiology, COPD 
and Diabetes, and explore potential of how this could contribute 
to meeting IAPT LTCs FYFV ambition 

ICAIAPT2021.002 In Progress 

 
  

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



To:   

• STP and ICS Leaders  

• Chief executives of all NHS trusts and foundation trusts  

• CCG Accountable Officers  

• GP practices and Primary Care Networks  

• Providers of community health services  

• NHS 111 providers  
 

CC:  

• NHS Regional Directors  

• Regional Incident Directors & Heads of EPRR  

• Chairs of ICSs and STPs  

• Chairs of NHS trusts, foundation trusts and CCG governing bodies  

• Local authority chief executives and directors of adult social care  

• Chairs of Local Resilience Forums 
 

Dear colleague 
 
Important – for action – Operational priorities for winter and 2021/22 
 
As we near the end of this year, we are writing to thank you and your teams for the 
way you have responded to the extraordinary challenge of Covid-19 and set out the 
key priorities for the next phase.   
 
An extraordinary 2020 
 
In the past year we have cared for more than 200,000 of those most seriously ill with 
Covid-19 in our hospitals. At the same time NHS staff have also worked incredibly 
hard to keep essential services such as cancer, mental health, general practice, 
urgent, emergency and community healthcare running and restore non-urgent services 
that had to be paused. Community nurses, pharmacists, NHS 111 staff and other NHS 
workers have cared for countless others, and been supported by the wider NHS team, 
from HR and finance to admin and clerical staff. The number of cancer treatments is 
above the level at the same time last year. GP appointments are back to around pre-
pandemic levels. Mental health services have remained open and more than 400,000 
children have accessed mental health services, above the target for 2020/21. 
Community services are supporting 15 per cent more people than they were at the 
same point last year. And we have had a record number of people vaccinated against 
flu, including a higher percentage of NHS staff than in the last three years. It has been 
an incredible team effort across our health and care system. 
 
The response to the pandemic has also demonstrated our health service’s enormous 
capacity for innovation with rapid development and implementation of new treatments, 
such as dexamethasone, rolling out of pulse oximetry and at-home patient self-
monitoring, and the move to virtual and telephone consultations.  We are already in the 
third week of our world-leading vaccination programme – the largest in NHS history.   
 
We know that this relentless pressure has taken a toll on our people. Staff have gone 
the extra mile again and again. But we have lost colleagues as well as family and 
friends to the virus; others have been seriously unwell and some continue to 

Skipton House 

80 London Road 

London 

SE1 6LH 

 
 

23 December 2020 

Page 57



experience long-term health effects. The response of the NHS to this unprecedented 
event has been magnificent. We thank you and your teams unreservedly for everything 
that you have given and achieved and the support you continue to give each other.   
 
You have asked us for a short statement of operational priorities going forward. This 
letter is therefore intended to help you and your staff over the next few months by: 

• ensuring we have a collective view of the critical actions for the remainder of 
this financial year, and 

• signalling the areas that we already know will be important in 2021/22. 
 
Managing the remainder of 2020/21 
 
Given the second wave and the new more transmissible variant of the virus, it is clear 
that this winter will be another challenging time for the NHS. Our task is five-fold: 
 

A. Responding to Covid-19 demand  
B. Pulling out all the stops to implement the Covid-19 vaccination programme 
C. Maximising capacity in all settings to treat non-Covid-19 patients 
D. Responding to other emergency demand and managing winter pressures 
E. Supporting the health and wellbeing of our workforce 

 
In addition, as the UK approaches the end of the transition period with the European 
Union on 31 December 2020, we will provide updates as soon as the consequences 
for the NHS become known. We are following a single operational response model for 
winter pressures, including Covid-19 and the end of the EU transition period. All CCGs 
and NHS trusts should have an SRO to lead the EU/UK transition work and issues 
should be escalated to the regional incident centre established for Covid-19, EU 
transition and winter. 
 
A. Responding to ongoing Covid-19 demand 
 
With Covid-19 inpatient numbers rising in almost all parts of the country, and the new 
risk presented by the variant strain of the virus, you should continue to plan on the 
basis that we will remain in a level 4 incident for at least the rest of this financial year 
and NHS trusts should continue to safely mobilise all of their available surge capacity 
over the coming weeks. This should include maximising use of the independent sector, 
providing mutual aid, making use of specialist hospitals and hubs to protect urgent 
cancer and elective activity and planning for use of funded additional facilities such as 
the Nightingale hospitals, Seacole services and other community capacity. Timely and 
safe discharge should be prioritised, including making full use of hospices.  Support for 
staff over this period will need to remain at the heart of our response, particularly as 
flexible redeployment may again be required. 
 
Maintaining rigorous infection prevention and control procedures continues to be 
essential. This includes separation of blue/green patient pathways, asymptomatic 
testing for all patient-facing NHS staff and implementing the ten key actions on 
infection prevention and control, which includes testing inpatients on day three of their 
admission. 
 
All systems are now expected to provide timely and equitable access to post-Covid 
assessment services, in line with the commissioning guidance. 
 

Page 58

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/key-actions-infection-prevention-and-control-and-testing/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/key-actions-infection-prevention-and-control-and-testing/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/your-covid-recovery/


B. Implementing the Covid-19 vaccination programme 
 
On 8 December, after the MHRA confirmed the Pfizer BioNTech vaccine was safe and 
effective, the biggest and most ambitious vaccine campaign in NHS history began.  
 
The Joint Committee for Vaccination and Immunisation (JCVI) priorities for roll out of 
the vaccine have been accepted by Government, which is why the priority for the first 
phase of the vaccination is for individuals 80 years of age and over, and care home 
workers, with roll out to care home residents now underway. It is critical that 
vaccinations take place in line with JCVI guidance to ensure those with the highest 
mortality risk receive the vaccine first. To minimise wastage, vaccination sites have 
been ensuring unfilled appointments are used to vaccinate healthcare workers who 
have been identified at highest risk of serious illness from Covid-19. Healthcare 
providers have been undertaking staff risk assessments throughout the pandemic to 
identify these individuals and it remains important that this is organised across the 
local healthcare system to ensure equitable access. 
 
If further vaccines are approved by the independent regulator, the NHS needs to be 
prepared and ready to mobilise additional vaccination sites as quickly as possible. In 
particular, Covid-19 vaccination is the highest priority task for primary care networks 
including offering the vaccination to all care home residents and workers. All NHS 
trusts should be ready to vaccinate their local health and social care workforce very 
early in the new year, as soon as we get authorisation and delivery of further vaccine.   
 
C. Maximising capacity in all settings to treat non-Covid-19 patients  
 
Systems should continue to maximise their capacity in all settings. This includes 
making full use of the £150m funding for general practice capacity expansion and 
supporting PCNs to make maximum use of the Additional Roles Reimbursement 
Scheme, in order to help GP practices maintain pre-pandemic appointment levels. 
NHS trusts should continue to treat as many elective patients as possible, restoring 
services to as close to previous levels as possible and prioritising those who have 
been waiting the longest, whilst maintaining cancer and urgent treatments.  
 
To support you to maximise acute capacity, as set out in Julian Kelly and Pauline 
Phillip’s letter of 17 December, we have also extended the national arrangement with 
the independent sector through to the end of March, to guarantee significant access to 
14 of the major IS providers.  NHS trusts have already been notified of the need for a 
Q4 activity plan for their local IS site by Christmas; this should be coordinated at 
system level. If you need it, we can also access further IS capacity within those 
providers subject to the agreement of the national team. However, we will need to 
return to local commissioning from the beginning of April and local systems, in 
partnership with their regional colleagues, will need to prepare for that.  
 
The publication of the Ockenden Review of maternity services is a critical reminder of 
the importance of safeguarding clinical quality and safety. As set out in our letter of 14 
December there are twelve urgent clinical priorities that need to be implemented. All 
Trust Boards must consider the review at their next public meeting along with an 
assessment of their maternity services against all the review’s immediate and essential 
actions.  The assessment needs to be reported to and assured by local systems, who 
should refresh their local programmes to make maternity care safer, more 
personalised and more equitable. 

Page 59

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Ockenden-Letter-CEO-Chairs-final-14.12.20-1.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Ockenden-Letter-CEO-Chairs-final-14.12.20-1.pdf


D. Responding to emergency demand and managing winter pressures 
 

Alongside providing £80m in new funding to support winter workforce pressures, we 
are asking systems to take the following steps to support the management of urgent 
care: 

 

• Ensure those who do not meet the ‘reasons to reside’ criteria are discharged 
promptly. We know that maximising capacity over the coming weeks and 
months is essential to respond to seasonal pressures.  We are asking all 
systems to improve performance on timely and safe discharge, as set out in 
today’s letter, as well as taking further steps that will improve the position on 
14+ and 21+ day length of stay, aided by 100% completion of discharge and 
reasons to reside data.  
 

• Complete the flu vaccination programme, including vaccinating our staff against 
flu and submitting vaccination uptake data to the National Immunisation and 
Vaccination system (NIVS). 
 

• To minimise the effects of emergency department crowding, continue to 
develop NHS 111 as the first point of triage for urgent care services in your 
locality, with the ability to book patients into the full range of local urgent care 
services, including urgent treatment centres, same day emergency care and 
speciality clinics as well as urgent community and mental health services.  
 

• Maximise community pathways of care for ambulance services referral, as a 
safe alternative to conveyance to emergency departments. Systems should also 
ensure sufficient arrangements are in place to avoid unnecessary conveyance 
to hospital, such as the provision of specialist advice, including from emergency 
departments, to paramedics as they are on scene. 

 
E. Supporting the health and wellbeing of our workforce 
 
Our NHS people continue to be of the utmost importance, and systems should 
continue to deliver the actions in their local People Plans.  Please remind all staff that 
wellbeing hubs have been funded and will mobilise in the new year in each system. 
 
Planning for 2021/22 
 

The Spending Review announced further funding for the NHS for 2021/22 but in the 
new year, once we know more about the progress of the pandemic and the impact of 
the vaccination programme, the Government will consider what additional funding will 
be required to reflect Covid-19 cost pressures.  
 
In the meantime, systems should continue to:  
 

• Recover non-covid services, in a way that reduces variation in access and 
outcomes between different parts of the country.  To maximise this recovery, we 
will set an aspiration that all systems aim for top quartile performance in 
productivity on those high-volume clinical pathways systems tell us have the 
greatest opportunity for improvements: ophthalmology, cardiac services and 
MSK/orthopaedics. The Government has provided an additional £1bn of funding 
for elective recovery in 2021/22.  In the new year we will set out more details of 

Page 60

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/BW338-Letter-re-winter-workforce.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/covid-19-hospital-discharge-and-recovery-services-letter-from-matthew-winn-and-dr-cliff-mann/


how we will target this funding, through the development of system-based 
recovery plans that focus on addressing treatment backlogs and long waits and 
delivering goals for productivity and outpatient transformation. In the meantime 
we are asking you to begin preparatory work for this important task now, 
through the appointment of a board-level executive lead per trust and per 
system for elective recovery. 
 

• Strengthen delivery of local People Plans, and make ongoing improvements 
on: equality, diversity and inclusion of the workforce; growing the workforce; 
designing new ways of working and delivering care; and ensuring staff are safe 
and can access support for their health and wellbeing. 
 

• Address the health inequalities that covid has exposed. This will continue to 
be a priority into 2021/22, and systems will be expected to make and audit 
progress against the eight urgent actions set out on 31 July as well as reduce 
variation in outcomes across the major clinical specialties and make progress 
on reducing inequalities for people with learning disabilities or serious mental 
illness, including ensuring access to high-quality health checks. 
 

• Accelerate the planned expansion in mental health services through delivery of 
the Mental Health Investment Standard together with the additional funding 
provided in the SR for tackling the surge in mental health cases.  This should 
include enhanced crisis response and continuing work to minimise out of area 
placements. 
 

• Prioritise investment in primary and community care, to deal with the backlog 
and likely increase in care required for people with ongoing health conditions, 
as well as support prevention through vaccinations and immunisations. 
Systems should continue to focus on improving patient experience of access to 
general practice, increasing use of online consultations, and supporting the 
expansion of capacity that will enable GP appointments to increase by 50 
million by 2023/24. 
 

• Build on the development of effective partnership working at place and 
system level. Plans are set out in our Integrating Care document. 
 

These priorities should be supported through the use of data and digital technologies, 
including the introduction of a minimum shared care record in all systems by 
September 2021 to which we will target some national funding, and improved use of 
remote monitoring for long term conditions. 
 
The 2021/22 financial framework 
 
For the reasons set out above, we won’t know the full financial settlement for the NHS 
until much closer to the beginning of the new financial year, reflecting, in particular, 
uncertainty over direct Covid-19 costs.  We will, however, need to start work early in 
the new year to lay the foundation for recovery. The underlying financial framework for 
2021/22 will therefore have the following key features: 
 

• Revenue funding will be distributed at system level, continuing the approach 
introduced this year. These system revenue envelopes will be consistent 
with the LTP financial settlement. They will be based on the published CCG 
allocation and the organisational Financial Recovery Fund each system would 

Page 61

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/261120-item-5-integrating-care-next-steps-for-integrated-care-systems.pdf


have been allocated in 2021/22. There will be additional funding to offset some 
of the efficiency and financial improvements that systems were unable to make 
in 2020/21. 
 

• Systems will need to calculate baseline contract values to align with these 
financial envelopes so there is a clear view of baseline financial flows. Our 
planning guidance will suggest that these should be based on 2019/20 outturn 
contract values adjusted for non-recurrent items, 2020/21 funding growth and 
service changes, not on the nationally-set 2020/21 block contracts.  
 

• Systems and organisations should start to develop plans for how Covid-19 
costs can be reduced and eliminated once we start to exit the pandemic. 

 

• System capital envelopes will also be allocated based on a similar national 
quantum and using a similar distributional methodology to that introduced for 
2020/21 capital planning. 

 
We will aim to circulate underlying financial numbers early in the new year. We will 
then provide fuller planning guidance once we have resolved any further funding to 
reflect the ongoing costs of managing Covid-19.  Further detail of non-recurrent 
funding announced in the recent Spending Review for elective and mental health 
recovery will also be provided at that point. 
 

Conclusion 
 
This year has arguably been the most challenging in the NHS’s 72-year history. But 
even in these most testing times, people across the service have responded with 
passion, resilience and flexibility to deal with not only the virus but also the needs of 
patients without Covid-19.  The rollout of the vaccine will bring hope to 2021 and we 
will need to maintain the energy and effort to meet the needs of all we serve 
throughout the year. Thank you for all that you have done and continue to do to 
achieve this. 
 
With best wishes, 

                                   
Amanda Pritchard     Julian Kelly 
Chief Executive, NHS Improvement and  NHS Chief Financial Officer 
NHS Chief Operating Officer 
 

 

Page 62



Appendix 3 - Integrated Commissioning - Adults Workplan - Actions Off-track 
 
Generated on: 17 December 2020 

 

1 

 

03 Adults Community Health Care & Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) 
 

 Support the development and commissioning of a local Advice & Guidance system  

Plan reference ICACH2021.001 

Lead Officer Annette Donegani 

Due Date 30-Sep-2020 

Last updated 03-Jan-2021 

Estimated progress  
 

Latest update Advice & Guidance (A&G) is being extended at pace at Northern Care Alliance 
(NCA) in line with the national requirement to accelerate outpatient recovery and 
implement rapid out-patient transformation to urgently tackle the backlog of 
patients needing care. 
 
A Greater Manchester (GM) A&G policy has been agreed and an NCA A&G 
Standard Operating Procedure has been drafted.  Guidance notes, informed by 
discussions with Salford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Primary Care 
Networks (PCNs), and step by step instructions have been drafted about the 
changes required of general practice and secondary care. Once finalised this will 
be made available to PCNs and comms will be agreed. 
 
This will be implemented carefully and iteratively, so that learning is captured, 
and the awareness and local usage of Advice and Guidance is improved. 

 
 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Adult Commissioning Committee  

Part 1 

Agenda item number: 7 

Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information   

13th January 2020  

Report of: Urgent and Emergency Care Delivery Board Update 

Date of paper: 28/12/20 

Subject: Urgent & Emergency Care Delivery Board Update 

In case of query please contact: Stephen Tilley, Senior Service 
Improvement Manager (Stephen.tilley@nhs.net) 

Strategic priorities (please mark with an X which priorities the paper 
relates to) 

Priority Selection 
Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research:  X 
Integrated Community Care Services (Adult 
Services): 

X 

Children’s and Maternity Services:  X 
Primary Care:  X 
Enabling Transformation:  X 

 

 

 

 

Purpose of paper:  

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



 
 

Further explanatory information required 

Question Answer 
How will this benefit the health and 
wellbeing of Salford residents or the 
Clinical Commissioning Group? 

Salford Patients will be able to access more 
appropriate services to support their clinical 
condition   

What risks may arise as a result of 
this paper? How can they be 
mitigated? 

N/A 

What equality-related risks may arise 
as a result of this paper?  How will 
these be mitigated? 

Paper is for information only 
 

Does this paper help address any 
existing high risks facing the 
organisation? If so what are they and 
how does this paper reduce them? 

Reducing overcrowding in Salford’s Emergency 
Department and protecting staff and patients 
exposure to COVID-19 

Please describe any possible 
conflicts of interest associated with 
this paper. 

N/A 

Please identify any current services 
or roles that may be affected by 
issues within this paper. 
 

N/A 

Footnote: 
 
Members of Adults Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly. Once papers are distributed 
no amendments are possible.

Page 66



 

Document development 

Process Yes No Not applicable 
Comments and date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, actual 
report) 

Outcome 

Public engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation) 

  X   

Clinical engagement 

(Please detail the method  i.e. survey, event, 
consultation) 

  X   

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Social Value and 
the impacts on the residents of Salford socially, 
economically and environmentally (including 
climate change)? 

  X   

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality Analysis 
(EA) of any adverse impacts? 
(Please detail outcomes, including risks and how 
these will be managed)  

  X   

Legal advice sought   X   

Presented to any informal groups or committees 
(including partnership groups) for engagement or 
other formal governance groups for comments / 
approval?  

(Please specify in comments) 

  X   

 
Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work and ensure there is 
clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether amendments were requested about a particular 
part of the work. 

P
age 67



 
Urgent and Emergency Care Delivery Board Update 

 

1.  Executive Summary 

   

 
This paper provides an update on work programmes relating to Urgent & Emergency Care 
as well as outlining performance against relevant NHS Constitutional Standards. 
 
 

 

2.  Emergency Department 

 
2.1 Performance against the 4 hour 95% standard for Accident and Emergency (A&E) at 

Salford Royal Foundation Trust (SRFT) was below target in 2020/21(approx. 82.86 
unvalidated April - November) and placed us 4th overall in performance across 
Greater Manchester (GM). This is lower than the same time period in 2019/20 
(approx. 86.26). 

 
2.2 With pressure being felt right across GM A&E performance for Salford CCG patients 

attending any A&E is also estimated to have remained below the 95% standard, and 
was c.85.8% (unvalidated) for November 2020 year to date  which is slightly up on 
November 2019 year to date (approx. 85.66%). 

 
2.3 SRFT saw Type 1 A&E attendance decrease by 30.4% in November 2020 (6,726 

attendances) when compared with November 2019 (9,657 attendances). Attendance 
numbers have reduced dramatically as people avoid A&E with the onset of COVID-
19 and there has been a concerted effort to connect patients with alternative more 
clinically appropriate services than A&E.    

 

Type 1 Attendance 
Month /Year 

2019  April 
8965 

May 
9187 

June 
8822 

July 
9387 

August 
8684 

September 
8935 

October 
9584 

November  
9657 
 

2020 April 
4612 
 

May 
6204 

June 
6937 

July 
7318 

August 
7200 

September 
6845 

October 
6786 

November 
6726  

 
 
2.4 SRFT continues to be challenged by Covid-19 and measures have been put in place 

to develop hot and cold areas in the hospital to separate Covid-19 and non Covid-19 
patients. In addition a comprehensive plan is in operation to manage the expected 
pressures that winter will bring.   

 
2.5 The Covid-19 pandemic has led to the suspension of some reporting by SRFT as 

activity is redirected to support the management of the pandemic. One of these areas 
is deflection rates and therefore this data is unavailable to share with the committee. 

 

Page 68



 
2.6 To support the management of Urgent and Emergency Care three programmes have 

been established to manage the flow of patients. These programmes aim to identify 
more effectively the most appropriate service for an individual patient to obtain 
appropriate clinical treatment. In addition, these programmes are designed to ensure 
that the risk to patients and staff of potential exposure to Covid-19 are reduced. 
Adult’s Commissioning Committee has previously seen a paper detailing these 
programmes. 

  
2.7  Pre-Emergency Department (ED) Registration Streaming - Since 24/08/20 

Salford has been operating a Pre-ED Registration Service from 8am to 8pm, 7 days 
a week. Initially, the service was only for adult patients but paediatric pathways have 
been tested since 18th October 2020.   Every patient that self presents to the ED is 
expected to be seen by a senior Band 7 nurse to assess their suitability for booking 
into the ED or Salford’s local clinical assessment service (LCAS). Since the service 
began, 5,299 patients have been directed to the LCAS. On average, over 30% of the 
self presenting patients have been redirected to the LCAS service as opposed to the 
ED.   

 
2.8 Call Before you Attend – this programme went live on 22/10/20 and operates a 24/7 

service. Using an agreed list of dispositions, calls to NHS 111 will trigger the 
redirection of information to Salford’s LCAS. The LCAS will then contact the patient 
within an allotted time. The LCAS  aims to support self-management where possible, 
offer advice and guidance, convert care from unplanned into planned if safe to do so 
and direct patients, when required, into the most appropriate services, ideally on a 
booked basis. With the LCAS’ local knowledge of services and established 
connections to other providers, patients can be quickly and appropriately directed to 
a clinical service. The service has taken 1,213 calls, of which only 259 were 
redirected to the ED and the others were directed to more appropriate services or 
supported with self-care.   

 
2.9  Direct Booking into the ED from NHS 111 - Since 01/12/20 Salford has facilitated 

an option where, if necessary and appropriate, NHS 111 can book directly into 
SRFT’s ED, giving the patient a timed appointment. This is supported by the national 
media campaign that is currently running. A Memorandum of Understanding has 
been agreed and signed off between NHS 111 and SRFT which ensures that the 
appropriate processes and IT are in place in order to facilitate this option safely. At 
present, only 18 bookings have been identified through this service. 

 
 

3. NHS 111 

 
 
3.1 The CCG continues to monitor and feedback comments relating to quality to NHS 

Blackpool CCG who are the lead commissioner for the service. 
  
3.2 Because of Covid-19 the North West Ambulance Service (NWAS) are currently only 

reporting on two of the NHS 111 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs): 
 
 • Calls answered (Target 95% in 60 seconds) 

• Calls abandoned (Target <5%)  

Page 69



 
3.3 Performance in 2020 has been reported as follows:  
 
 

NWAS Performance 

 Targ
et 

Period Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

Of all 
calls 
offered 
% 
abandon
ed after 
at least 
30 
seconds 

<5% 
2019/

20 

2.4
% 

2.6
% 

3.8
% 

7.1
% 

5.3
% 

7.4
% 

9.7
% 

15.8
% 

14.4
% 

7.5
% 

16.0
% 

41.2
% 

2020/
21 

23.0
% 

10.1
% 

5.9
% 

3.4
% 

6.8
% 

22.9
% 

28.8
% 

9.0
% 

        

Of calls 
answere
d % in 
60 
seconds  

95% 2019/
20 

87.3
% 

87.9
% 

85.0
% 

78.5
% 

77.3
% 

73.3
% 

70.6
% 

64.4
% 

65.8
% 

73.9
% 

60.4
% 

47.1
% 

2020/
21 

52.3
% 

65.5
% 

75.4
% 

83.2
% 

69.6
% 

39.6
% 

23.8
% 

63.1
% 

        

 
3.4 Abandonment rates in September and October were extremely high though there 

was some return to normality in November. This was also reflected in the calls 
answered within 60 seconds where the percentage dropped dramatically. We 
continue to work with NHS Blackpool CCG to monitor and support solutions to these 
issues.   

 
3.5 NHS 111 call activity from the Salford CCG population in 2020 was as follows: 
 

NHS Salford CCG Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 
Aug-

20 Sep-20 Oct-20 
Nov-

20 

Calls Triaged 3,976 4,677 4,533 4,867 5,034 

Not 
published 

3,903 4,671 

Total Ambulance Despatches 517 615 628 640 632 502 572 

Recommended to Attend 
A&E 358 517 507 627 583 447 592 

Recommended to attend 
primary and community care 1,589 2,215 2,091 2,330 2,587 2,055 2,374 

Recommended to Attend 
Other Service 594 382 253 167 156 49 67 

Not Recommended to Attend 
Other Service 918 948 1,054 1,103 1,076 850 1,066 

Data source: NWAS Ambulance Reporting Portal – NHS 111 Monthly CCG Reports 
 

3.5 The number of calls have remained steady with an average of 11.5% of calls referred 
to A&E between April 20 and November 20. The service continues to connect 
patients with appropriate services in primary and community care where possible.   

 
 

4. Emergency Ambulance Service 

 
4.1  NWAS follow the national Ambulance Response Programme (ARP). The categories 

of ambulance call are as follows: 
 
4.2 Category 1 - Time critical and life threatening events requiring immediate 

intervention, such as cardiac arrest or respiratory arrest; airway obstructions and 

Page 70



 
ineffective breathing. NWAS aims to respond to these calls within an average time of 
7 minutes and at least 9 out of 10 times (90th percentile) within 15 minutes.  

 
4.3 Category 2 - Potentially serious conditions that may require rapid assessment, urgent 

on-scene clinical intervention/treatment and / or urgent transport. These conditions 
include probable heart attacks, strokes, and major burns. NWAS aims to respond to 
these calls within an average time of 18 minutes and at least 9 out of 10 times within 
40 minutes.  

 
4.4 Category 3 - Urgent problem (not immediately life-threatening) that needs treatment 

to relieve suffering (e.g. pain control) and transport or assessment and management 
at scene with referral where needed within a clinically appropriate timeframe. These 
conditions include burns (not major); non-emergency late pregnancy/childbirth 
problems; uncomplicated diabetic hyper/hypoglycaemia; not immediately at risk drug 
overdoses; non-emergency injuries; abdominal pain. Mortality rates are very low or 
zero; there is evidence to support alternative pathways of care. NWAS aims to 
respond to these calls at least 9 out of 10 times within 120 minutes. 

 
4.5 Category 4 - Problems that are not urgent but need assessment (face to face or 

telephone) and possibly transport within a clinically appropriate timeframe. NWAS 
aims to respond to these calls at least 9 out of 10 times within 180 minutes. 

 
4.6 ARP performance for 2020/21 was as follows: 
 

NWAS Performance 

ARP Indicators Target Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 July-20 Aug-20 Sept-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 

Category 
1 

Life 
threatening 
(mean 
response 
time) 

00:07:00 00:07:25 00:06:50 00:06:53 00:07:06 00:07:27 00:07:27 00:08:03 00:07:51 

Life 
threatening 
(90th 
percentile) 

00:15:00 00:12:18 00:11:21 00:11:27 00:11:55 00:12:35 00:12:27 00:13:22 00:12:57 

Category 
2 

Emergency 
(mean 
response 
time 

00:18:00 00:24:45 00:15:11 00:17:49 00:20:54 00:27:37 00:32:16 00:45:40 00:28:57 

Emergency 
(90th 
percentile) 

00:40:00 00:53:35 00:28:36 00:34:55 00:42:02 00:59:30 01:10:34 01:40:28 01:01:20 

Category 
3 

Urgent 
(90th 
percentile) 

02:00:00 03:00:02 01:25:46 01:55:15 02:22:12 03:27:07 03:51:35 05:36:30 03:16:03 

Category 
4 

Less 
Urgent 
(90th 
percentile) 

03:00:00 03:38:27 02:10:27 02:29:07 03:12:07 03:47:57 04:12:58 05:57:11 04:48:41 

 
 

4.7 The Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP) continues 
to work closely with NWAS to improve performance against the ARP targets. 

 
4.8 The average handover time in Salford for 2020/21 (April to November) is 33.44 

minutes (unvalidated) this is an improvement on the average for the same time 

Page 71



 
period in 2019/20 which was 33.07 minutes. The CCG is working closely with the 
Trust and NWAS to improve handover times.  

 
 

5. Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC) 

 
 
5.1  Due to Covid-19 and the need to release capacity across the NHS to support the 

response to the pandemic, NHS England/Improvement (NHSEI) has paused the 
collection and publication of DToC data. Salford continues to explore ways that 
DToC’s can be improved and a working group across Health and Social Care led by 
a senior director from Social Care to chart future planning and operational delivery 
has been convened.  

 
 

6. Patient Transport Services (PTS) 

 
 
6.1  NWAS are the current provider of PTS for Greater Manchester. The service has been 

greatly affected by the challenges NWAS faces due to Covid-19 and the resulting 
reduction in face to face outpatient appointments with our key providers. This has 
resulted in the criteria for the service having to change on several occasions 
throughout the year. The CCG has been assured that every effort has been made to 
deliver an appropriate service for our patients and help from the third sector (e.g. 
Black Cab support for patients) and initiatives from our providers (e.g. Take Home 
and Tuck Up programme) have greatly supplemented these core PTS services. Due 
to the pandemic and the need for NWAS to release capacity it was agreed that 
NWAS would pause the collection and publication of statistics relating to PTS. 

  
6.2 The GMHSCP continues to review PTS requirements and ever changing clinical and 

operational priorities caused by Covid-19 on behalf of CCGs. 
 
  

7. CQUIN Update 

 
 
7.1  Due to Covid-19 and the need to release capacity across the NHS to support the 

response to the pandemic, the CCG, in consultation with providers has paused the 
monitoring of CQUIN projects. 

 
 

8. Recommendations 

 
 
8.1 The Adult’s Commissioning Committee is asked to note the contents of this report.  
 
 
Stephen Tilley 
Senior Service Improvement Manager 

Page 72



 
  
 

1 
 

Adult Commissioning Committee 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO 8 
 
Item for Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)   
 
DATE OF MEETING 13 January 2021 
 

Report of: 
 

Karen Proctor/Charlotte Ramsden 

Date of Paper: 
 

January 13th 2021 

Subject: 
 

Adult Commissioning Report 

In case of query  
Please contact: 
 

Judd Skelton 0161 212 5632 
Harry Golby 0161 212 6161 

Purpose of Paper: 
 
This paper provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of 
commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult 
Commissioning Committee are kept abreast of developments and progress. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



 
  
 

2 
 

Further explanatory information required 
 

 
HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP? 
 

This paper provides an overview of a 
number of key or emerging areas of 
commissioning and provision relating to 
adult health and care to ensure Adult 
Commissioning Committee are kept abreast 
of developments and progress. 

 
WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED? 
  

N/A 

 
WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED 
RISKS MAY ARISE AS A RESULT 
OF THIS PAPER?  HOW WILL 
THESE BE MITIGATED? 
 

N/A 

 
DOES THIS PAPER HELP 
ADDRESS ANY EXISTING HIGH 
OR EXTREME RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO 
WHAT ARE THEY AND HOW 
DOES THIS PAPER REDUCE 
THEM? 
 

N/A 

 
PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY 
POSSIBLE CONFLICTS OF 
INTEREST ASSOCIATED WITH 
THIS PAPER. 
 

N/A 

 
PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY 
CURRENT SERVICES OR ROLES 
THAT MAY BE AFFECTED BY 
ISSUES WITHIN THIS PAPER: 
 

N/A 

Footnote: 
 
Members of – Adults’ Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once 
papers are distributed no amendments are possible. 

Page 74



 
  
 

3 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 75



 
   

 
 

4 
 

Document Development 

 

Process Yes No 
Not 

Applicable 

Comments and Date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 

actual report) 
Outcome 

Public Engagement 

(Please detail the method  ie survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Clinical Engagement 

(Please detail the method  ie survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts? 
(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed)  

  X   

Legal Advice Sought   X   

Presented to any other groups or 
committees, including Partnership Groups 

(Please specify in comments) 

  X   

 
Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 
and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work.

P
age 76



 

5 
 

 
 

Adult Commissioning Report 

 

1.  Executive Summary 

   

 
This report provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of 
commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult 
Commissioning Committee are kept abreast of developments. 
 
Items in this month’s report include: 
 

 Mental Health Practitioners and Living Well 

 New Bereavement Counselling Pilot 

 Age Friendly Salford Update 

 Sexual and Reproductive Health Services   
 

 

1) Investment in Mental Health Practitioners and the new Salford Living 
Well model 

Salford CCG and Salford’s five Primary Care Networks (PCNs) agreed investment of 
£954K at the November Primary Care Commissioning Committee which will see 
Mental Health Practitioners (MHPs) located in the PCNs aligned to the Living Well 
model with additional capacity in the Living Well Multi Disciplinary Team (MDT).  

As part of the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP), localities are being asked to realign 
community mental health services with PCNs, creating ‘new and integrated models 
of primary and community mental health care’ by 2023/24.  To support these 
integrated models, Mental Health Practitioner (MHP) roles are included in the GP 
Contract Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS) from April 2021. 

In Salford this remodelling is being undertaken within the Living Well work.  Living 
Well is seeing the development of an exciting and innovative MDT, informed by and 
designed with people with lived experience of mental ill health and comprising 
clinical and non-clinical practitioners from GMMH, the VCSE sector and peer 
mentors.  The new model will be strengths based, trauma informed and solution 
focused and will recognise and support people to overcome the social determinants 
of mental ill health. The focus is on adults too complex for primary care and IAPT but 
who do not meet thresholds for secondary care.      
 
Living Well is an alliance with GMMH, Six Degrees, Start, Mind and the Salford 
Mental Health Forum. This has seen all these providers working together and 

Page 77



 

6 
 

sharing their skills and experience to develop a richer mental health system which 
harnesses both clinical and non-clinical approaches and organisations.  
 
Living Well is currently piloting in Broughton and current investment in Living Well is 
c£750K pa, £520K of which is with the VCSE sector.  This investment is made up of 
GM Transformation Funding (administered via Salford CVS), Lottery funding, CCG 
investment and from moving resources from existing provision.    
 
The additional funding from PCNs and the CCG will extend the reach of Living Well 
from April 1st 2021 (Phase 1) establishing a consistent mental health offer in the 
PCNs across Salford, which will also inform the business case for citywide roll out of 
Living Well by 1.4.22 and give the foundations from which more bespoke, 
neighbourhood/PCN-based need can be built upon (Phase 2 see Section 3).   This 
will mean that Broughton will continue to have a full Living Well MDT to learn from, 
inform and shape future citywide delivery, but at the same time the other four PCNS 
will also have MHP and wider MDT input and access.  
 
MHPs will be located in the five PCNs but work as part of the Living Well MDT to 
help align the MHPs as part of our future Living Well approach.  In addition to the 5 
MHPs, and to ensure that the resource has greater multi-disciplinary resilience to 
draw on, funding will also be utilised for the following posts:  
 

 1.0 WTE MHP (B7) to give greater resilience and provide additional capacity 
to cover vacancies and support busier PCNs 

 3.0 WTE MHP (B6) to provide additional capacity and support to the PCN-
based MHPs (a mix of social workers and CPNs) 

 2.0 WTE Psychological Therapists who would be a dedicated resource for 
quicker access to people requiring Step 3 + psychological interventions. 

 1.0 WTE Consultant Psychiatrist  

 1.0 WTE Clinical Lead (B8a) to assist in the clinical supervision and support of 
these staff. 

 1.0 WTE Mental Health Community Connector to be the link between 
Wellbeing Matters and Living Well, recognising the significant number of 
referrals to Wellbeing Matters regarding mental health and the need for clear 
referral pathways to and from Wellbeing Matters and Living Well.  

  1.0 WTE Administrative support  
 
These additional resources would be located in the Living Well MDT so as to start to 
develop and inform the future model and build up the connectivity with other Living 
Well MDT colleagues. 
 
During Q2 of 21/22 a business case will outline the proposed model for a citywide 
Living Well service which will align to the Community Mental Health Framework 
outlined in the NHS LTP and the role of MHPs in PCNs.  This business case will 

Page 78



 

7 
 

outline the proposed model and identify the extent to which this can be populated as 
a result of:  
 

 redesigning/relocating existing commissioned capacity 

 accessing PCN investment regarding reimbursable roles 

 additional CCG investment aligned to the LTP and Mental Health Investment 
Standard (MHIS)  

 
Regular reporting and updates to the Adults Advisory Board, Primary Care 
Commissioning Committee, PCN Collaborative and Adults Commissioning 
Committee will take place to ensure wider system, clinical and political oversight and 
assurance.   
 
2)  New Bereavement Counselling PiIot 
 
Six Degrees provide IAPT low intensity interventions in Salford and host the Greater 
Manchester Suicide and Bereavement services. Therefore, the organisation has 
developed a significant insight into the difficulties people are faced with when 
experiencing bereavement. Many have lost loved ones during the coronavirus 
pandemic and some in traumatic circumstances. Many have been unable to grieve 
due to multiple losses, complex social lives, isolation and /or have been unable to 
participate in usual end of life rituals in culturally acceptable ways.  
 
Whilst the GM Bereavement Information Service / Bereavement by Suicide Service 
may offset further need for therapy, there are people presenting with prolonged, 
traumatic, disordered and/or complex grief (CG). Current provision is not available to 
meet this need, and at times therapists report feeling ill equipped to help where 
bereavement is the key characteristic. Gaps have been identified in the therapeutic 
provision and it is anticipated there will be increased demand for bereavement 
counselling in Salford in the coming months and years. Research indicates that 
flexible and tailored interventions are significantly more effective in treating 
bereavement and complex grief, rather than a ‘one size fits all’ approach.  
 
The following gaps in provision are identified:  
 

 People reporting prolonged signposting around the health and third sector 
services. 

 Lack of understanding around bereavement as concept in its own right and 
links to mental health. 

 Therapists report feeling ill equipped to contain/support people effectively. 

 Bereavement presentations do not ‘fit’ into current manualised IAPT offer. 
 
To address these gaps in provision, a pilot project will work alongside the existing 
GM bereavement information service / suicide bereavement support service and test 

Page 79



 

8 
 

the most appropriate approach to meet need, whilst also complementing existing 
IAPT services. This approach would:  
 

 Develop an alternative therapeutic offer to those bereaved – one that is 
patient led & flexible to enable ownership and control of the patient 
experience. 

 Develop a hub of expertise in the area of bereavement that complements the 
wider system. 

 Develop integrated pathways with the wider system (the Greater Manchester 
Bereavement Service; Suicide Bereavement Services and Six Degrees step 2 
IAPT service). 

 Forge links with key stakeholders and partners including CRUSE, Living Well 
& Beyond. 

 Work with Salford University MSc Counselling & Psychotherapy Programme 
and D58 Manchester (Tavistock Psychotherapy Training) to develop clinical 
placement opportunities to ensure resilience and sustainability within the 
workforce and develop therapists able to respond to the levels of 
bereavement need. 
 

Pathways into the service would exist via, IAPT (SPA), Beyond, GM 
bereavement/Suicide Bereavement service.   
 
Service and Finance Group approved funding of £100K for the pilot and assuming 
this evaluates well, a business case will then be brought for recurrent funding during 
21/22. 
 
3)  Age Friendly Salford Update 
 
Age Friendly Salford is a consortium of 3 VCSE partners, namely; Inspiring 
Communities Together, Age UK Salford and Salford CVS. Officially, these 
organisations are contracted to deliver the Community Assets and Tech and Tea 
contracts. However, over the past 12 months, their collaboration has grown, and they 
have come together operationally to create the publicly identifiable brand of ‘Age 
Friendly Salford’, whilst meeting the outcomes of the Community Assets and Tech and 
Tea contracts respectively. 
 
The partners have adapted their delivery during this challenging year, ensuring older  
residents remain connected and supported throughout the pandemic. The history of 
the Tech and Tea programme put many older residents in a good position to keep in 
touch with their friends and family online, as the programme had equipped them with 
the kit and digital skills needed. Currently, there are daily activities, via Zoom, to keep 
people engaged. Whilst others are supported by phone, where appropriate. 
 
In addition to the operational delivery, the strategic work sits within the following 
governance structure; 

Page 80



 

9 
 

 

 International National Greater 
Manchester 

Salford 

Who  World Health 
Organisation 

Centre for 
Ageing Better 

GM Ageing 
Hub 

Age Friendly 
Salford 
Alliance 

Salford Older 
Person 
Network 

What  Maintain 
Salford’s 
WHO Age 
Friendly City 
status 

UK network of 
Age Friendly 
Communities 

Active 
member – 
sharing 
learning, 
aligning 
delivery  

Bringing key 
stakeholders 
together to 
support AFS 
agenda  

Providing 
older people 
across Salford 
with a voice 
and influence 
on the 
delivery of the 
AFS plan  

 
Both contracts were awarded from 1st April 2020 on a 1+1 term and the final year 
extension is in the process of being triggered, meaning the contracts will run in their 
current form until 31st March 2022. 
 
Throughout the next 12 months, a comprehensive review will be undertaken. This will 
be in partnership with stakeholders and citizens, as well as exploring -commissioning 
options with the integrated commissioning team, who also fund these partners to 
provide services for older people. The review will take the learnings from the contracts 
in their current form, consider the impact of the adaptations made as a result of Covid-
19, as well as reviewing best practice nationally, to formulate a valuable, 
comprehensive service offer that supports older people in Salford to age well. 
 
Considerations will be given to neighbourhood models, strength-based support and 
healthy ageing, as we explore the services within the scope of the review and how 
they best fit within the wider system. The new service model will be co-designed with 
Salford residents and will meet the ageing well outcomes identified in the locality plan. 
 
4)  Sexual and Reproductive Health Services (SRHS) 
 
Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award an extension for 
the commissioning of the Sexual and Reproductive Health Services (SRHS) for 
Salford and Bolton provided by Bolton FT, went to the SCC Procurement Board on 
the 9th December and was agreed. It has also been to Service and Finance group on 
the 1st December and the Health and Care Commissioning Board on the 16th 
December and been agreed.  
 
The budget for Salford is £1,794,437, the total including Bolton is £3,284,828. 
 
The SRHS are commissioned to provide clinical services, information, advice and 
support on sexual health matters including sexually transmitted infections (STIs), 

Page 81



 

10 
 

contraception, relationships and unplanned pregnancy for people over 13. The 
commissioning responsibilities for sexual health services takes place across Local 
Authorities, Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England. 

 
Salford City Council is mandated to commission: 

a. Sexual health services providing contraceptive services.  
b. Sexually transmitted infections (STI) testing and treatment, chlamydia 

screening and HIV testing  
c. Specialist services, including young people’s sexual health, outreach, HIV 

prevention and support, psycho-sexual counselling, sexual health promotion, 
education and engagement in schools, colleges and other vulnerable or young 
people’s settings 

The current contract ends on the 30/06/2021. The extension for 12 months to the 
service is required for a number of reasons: 

  
a) New and existing provider’s resilience and ability to produce high quality bids, 

as part of a competitive tender exercise will be affected by the additional 
pressure relating to the COVID-19 global pandemic.  

b) For a contract retender, Commissioners would undertake a Sexual Health 
Needs Assessment including all the relevant latest data, stakeholder and 
service user consultation exercises regarding current, unmet and future need. 

c) A new service specification would need to be developed and some market 
testing carried out, to assess and stimulate interest in tendering for the contract.  

d) In the current pandemic, both commissioners and providers are busy 
responding to COVID-19.  

e) Therefore, there is a risk of recommissioning a service of insufficient quality and 
carrying out a costly tendering exercise. 

 
The provider delivers: 

 Detection and treatment of STIs and HIV and promotion of sexual health and 
STI prevention. Timely detection and treatment is key to reduce spread and 
potential outbreaks. 

 Reduce late diagnosis of HIV and encourage routine testing. 

 Reduce unintended conceptions through prescribing and promotion of 
contraception. 

 Outreach to sex-on-premises venues.  

 Educational outreach, group and 1:1 support in young people’s settings and 
professional training provision. 

 Tier 3 ‘hub’ located at Goodman Centre/Lanceburn Health Centre Community 
clinics located across Salford (x5) 

 
Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council have agreed to extend the joint contract with 
Salford City Council from 1st July 2021 – 30th June 2022, on the condition that Bolton 

Page 82



 

11 
 

NHS Foundation Trust agree to make savings. The scale of these savings is yet to be 
agreed between BMBC and the provider. 
  
In 2019-2020 an average of 1,415 adult patients were seen each month (total 16,982 
in 2019-2020). Appointments include access to the full range of contraceptive 
methods, STI/HIV testing and treatment. An additional 1100 annual under 19 
attendances in 2019-2020.  

 
The young people’s service delivers 1:1 and group education and outreach in YP’s 
settings. In 2019-2020 192 sessions were delivered reaching 4097 young people in a 
broad range of settings, not limited to schools and colleges.  
 
As well as continued service improvements. The service has been recognised as 
leaders in the PrEP trial recruitment (HIV prevention). They have also responded well 
to the COVID-19 global pandemic, finding new ways of working in the new situation to 
keep staff and service users as safe as possible.  
 
3. Recommendations 
 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note and discuss this overview of a 
number of key or emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult 
health and care.  
 
Judd Skelton (Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning) & Harry Golby (Assistant 
Director of Commissioning)   

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 11th November 2020
	4 Finance Report, including requests for approval of contract extensions
	5 Charging Assessment Team Capacity within the Welfare Rights and Debt Advice Service (WRADAS)
	6 Adults Assurance Framework Report
	06 - Appendix 1
	06 - Appendix 2 - Operational priorities for winter and 2021 22
	06 - Appendix 3 - IntegratedCommissioningAdultsWorkplan - actions off track FINAL

	7 Urgent and Emergency Care Update
	8 Adult Commissioning Report

